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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES  

 
 

 
 
Board of Directors  
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
 
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data reported 
to it in the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form FFA-10 (FFA-10) for the Omnitrans annual National 
Transit Database (NTD) report:   
  

1. A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions.  The 
correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.  
 

2. A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis and the data gathering is an ongoing effort.    
 

3. Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review and 
audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report.  The data are fully 
documented and securely stored.  
 

4. A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate and that the 
recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are reviewed and signed by a 
supervisor, as required.   
 

5. The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or meet FTA requirements.  
 

6. The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles data 
and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles data, appear to be accurate.  
 

7. Data are consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about Omnitrans’ operations.  
 

We have applied the procedures described in Attachment 1 of this report, which were agreed to by Omnitrans and 
the FTA and specified in the declarations section of the 2013 Reporting Manual, solely to assist you in evaluating 
whether Omnitrans complied with the standards described above and that the information included in the NTD 
report FFA-l0 form for the year ended June 30, 2013, is presented in conformity with the requirements of the 
Uniform System of Accounts and Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR part 630, 
Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual. Omnitrans’ management is 
responsible for Omnitrans’ compliance with those standards and the accuracy of the FFA-10 form.  
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This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the 
responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedures described in Attachment 1 either for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested or for any other purpose.  
 
The procedures and findings described in Attachment 1 of this report, which are referenced in order to correspond 
to the 2013 Reporting Manual procedures, were applied separately to each of the information systems used to 
develop the reported vehicle revenue miles (VRM), passenger miles (PM), fixed guideway directional route miles 
(FG DRM), and operating expenses of Omnitrans for the year ended June 30, 2013, and for each of the following 
modes: (1) Motor Bus - directly operated (MBDO), (2) Motor Bus - purchased transportation (MBPT) and (3) 
Demand Response - purchased transportation (DRPT).  
 
We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion on compliance with the procedures noted in attachment 1 or on the FFA-10.  Accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of Omnitrans management, Omnitrans Board of 
Directors and the FTA and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties.  
 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 6, 2013 
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Excerpt from the FTA 2013 Reporting Manual Exhibit 83 - Federal Funding Allocation Data Review - Suggested 
Procedures:  
 
FTA has specified and agreed to a set of procedures for the independent accountant to perform and satisfy the 
requirements of the Federal Funding Allocation data review.  The procedures, to be applied to each applicable 
mode and type of service (TOS) directly operated (DO) and purchased transportation (PT), are:  

 
a. Obtain and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining data in 

accordance with the NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual.  If 
procedures are not written, discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility for 
supervising the NTD data preparation and maintenance.  

 
Results – We obtained a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining  
data and found them in accordance with NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 CFR Part 
630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual. 
  

b. Discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility for supervising the preparation and 
maintenance of NTD data to determine:  
 

 The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and  
 Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent 

with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, 
January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual.  

 
Results - We inquired regarding Omnitrans’ procedures for the MBDO, MBPT and DRPT services 
noting that the asserted procedures were consistently applied.  In addition, based on our inquiry with 
the Planning and Scheduling Manager and the Operations Services Supervisor, management asserted 
that the procedures resulted in the accumulation and reporting of data consistent with the NTD 
definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as 
presented in the 2013 Reporting Manual. 
 

c. Inquire of same personnel concerning the retention policy that is followed by the transit agency with 
respect to source documents supporting the NTD data, Total Modal Operating Expenses data (F-30, line 
15, column e), Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile and Passenger Miles Traveled (S-10, lines 12 and 20, 
column d).  

 
Results - We inquired with the Planning and Scheduling Manager and the Operations Services 
Supervisor, regarding Omnitrans’ retention policy for NTD data, Total Modal Operating Expenses 
data, Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile and Passenger Miles Traveled.  Per inquiry, the current practice is 
to retain paper and electronic data for at least three years. 
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d. Based on a description of the transit agency's procedures obtained in items a and b above, identify all 
the source documents which are to be retained by the transit agency for a minimum of three years.  For 
each type of source document, select three months out of the year and determine whether the document 
exists for each of these periods.  

 
Results - We inspected the following source documents for each type of service, selected three months 
out of the year and determined that the documents existed for each of these periods: 
 

Type of Service Source Document Months Tested 
MBDO  MBDO Statistics Reports 

(queried from TransTrack 
Manager System database) 

 Passenger Mile Survey 
Summary from Automated 
Passenger Count system GFI 
database 

 Ridership by Trip Reports 
 Trapeze FX Summaries by 

Route 
 Route Plans 

 September 2012, 
January 2013 and 
March 2013. 

 Three years of data 
were noted to be 
archived on Omnitrans’ 
network. 

MBPT  MBPT Statistics Reports 
(queried from TransTrack 
Manager System database) 

 Ridership by Trip Reports 
 Trapeze FX Summaries by 

Route 
 Route Plans  
 Results of audited MBPT 

Average Passenger Miles 
Survey from 2010-11 (see 
further discussion at 
procedure i)

 September 2012, 
January 2013 and 
March 2013. 

 Three years of data 
were noted to be 
archived on Omnitrans’ 
network. 

DRPT  DRPT Statistics Reports 
(queried from TransTrack 
Manager System database) 

 Daily Totals from the Trapeze 
Pass system 

 Trip Distance Productivity 
Reports from the Trapeze Pass 
system 

 Driver Manifests generated 
from the Trapeze Pass system 

 Results of audited DRPT 
Average Passenger Miles 
Survey from 2010-11

 September 2012, 
January 2013 and 
March 2013. 

 Three years of data 
were noted to be 
archived on Omnitrans’ 
network. 
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e. Discuss the system of internal controls with the person responsible for supervising and maintaining the 
NTD data.  Inquire whether individuals, independent of the individuals preparing source documents and 
posting data summaries, review the source documents and data summaries for completeness, accuracy 
and reasonableness and how often such reviews are performed.  

 
Results - We inquired regarding the system of internal controls noting that each respective mode/type of 
service is being reviewed by personnel independent of the preparation process. On a regular basis data 
from the TransTrack System for the MBDO, MBPT and DRPT modes of service are being reviewed for 
completeness and reasonableness by the Planning and Scheduling Manager for the MBDO and DRPT 
modes and the Operations Services Supervisor for the DRPT mode. 

 
f. Select a haphazard sample of the source documents and determine whether supervisors' signatures are 

present as required by the system of internal controls.  If supervisors' signatures are not required, 
inquire how the supervisors' reviews are documented.  

 
Results – For the MBDO and MBPT modes data is collected by automated systems. The collected data 
is reviewed and approved by a supervisor who documents monthly results and signs off on performance 
reports. For the DRPT mode, we haphazardly chose three test days and examined all Driver Manifests 
for those days and noted that drivers and supervisors signed on the manifests.   

 
g. Obtain the worksheets utilized by the transit agency to prepare the final data that are transcribed onto 

the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.  Compare the periodic data included on the worksheets 
to the periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency.  Test the arithmetical accuracy of the 
summarizations.  

 
Results - We obtained the worksheets utilized by Omnitrans to transcribe statistics to the Federal 
Funding Allocation Statistics form and compared the data to summaries without exception.  We tested 
the arithmetical accuracy of the summarizations without exception.   

 
h. Discuss the transit agency's procedure for accumulating and recording Passenger Miles (PM) data in 

accordance with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the procedure used is (1) 
a 100% count of actual PM or (2) an estimate of PM based on statistical sampling meeting FTA's 95% 
confidence and 10% precision requirements.  If the transit agency conducts a statistical sample for 
estimating PM, inquire whether the sampling procedure is (1) one of the two procedures suggested by 
FTA and described in FTA Circulars 2710.1A or 2710.2A; or (2) an alternative sampling procedure.  If 
the transit agency uses an alternative sampling procedure, inquire whether the procedure has been 
approved by FTA or whether a qualified statistician has determined that the procedure meets FTA's 
statistical requirements.  Note as a negative finding in the report the use of an alternative sampling 
procedure that has not been approved in writing by a qualified statistician.  

 
Results – Sampling was conducted for the MBDO mode.  We reviewed the sampling methodologies and 
noted that the requirement per Circular 2710.1A is to sample 3 trips every other day. However 
Omnitrans obtained a waiver from the U.S. Department of Transportation to sample 5 trips every week 
and totaling 260 trips per year.  The waiver was dated December 18, 2009. 
 
For MBPT and DRPT modes, sampling is performed every third year. The sampling was conducted for 
fiscal year 2011. Omnitrans sampling was not performed in the current year. 
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i. Discuss with transit agency staff the transit agency's eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PM 
data every third year. Determine whether the transit agency meets one of the three criteria that allow 
transit agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating PM data every third year rather than 
annually. Specifically:  
 

1. According to the 2010 Census, the public transit agency serves an urbanized area (UZA) of less 
than 500,000 population.  

2. The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes in 
annual maximum revenue service in any UZA. 

3. The service is purchased from a seller and is included in the transit agency's NTD report.  
 

For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation for the most 
recent mandatory sampling year (2011) and determine that statistical sampling was conducted and 
meets the 95% confidence and 10% precision requirements.  

 
Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PM for the current report year.  

 
Results – The MBPT and DRPT modes comply with criteria allowing the accumulation of PM data 
every third year.  For the MBPT mode, documentation was reviewed for the most recent mandatory 
sampling year (2011) and it was determined that statistical sampling was conducted and met the 
requirements. For the DRPT mode, we reviewed documentation for the most recent mandatory 
sampling year (2011) and it was determined that statistical sampling was conducted and met 
requirements per Circular 2710.2A. 

 
j. Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PM data used by the transit agency.  

Obtain a copy of the transit agency's working papers or methodology used to select the actual sample of 
runs for recording PM data.  If the average trip length was used, determine that the universe of runs was 
used as the sampling frame.  Determine that the 2013 methodology to select specific runs from the 
universe resulted in a haphazard selection of runs.  If a selected sample run was missed, determine that 
a replacement sample run was randomly selected.  Determine that the transit agency followed the stated 
sampling procedure.  

 
Results – For the MBDO mode we obtained a copy of Omnitrans’ methodology used in the statistical 
sampling to estimate average PM, and reviewed the December 18, 2009 letter from the U.S. 
Department of Transportation approving a reduced sample size, and determined that the methodology 
used by Omnitrans resulted in a haphazard selection of runs and that the stated sampling procedure 
was followed.   
 
As described in procedure i above, for the MBPT and DRPT modes, surveys were conducted in 2011. 
Sampling was not performed in the current year.   

 
k. Select a haphazard sample of the source documents for accumulating PM data and determine that they 

are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are accurate. Select a haphazard 
sample of the accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for each of the selected periods.  
List the accumulation periods that were tested.  Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summarization.  

 
Results - For MBDO we haphazardly chose 40 surveyed routes from September 2012, January 2013 
and March 2013.  We verified the mathematical accuracy of the Trip Report Details and that the data 
was properly input to the accumulation worksheet designed to calculate the average PM with no 
exceptions. 
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For the MBPT and DRPT modes, the surveys were performed in 2011. We reviewed the source 
documents used to accumulate PM information for MBPT and DRPT which uses sampling from 2011 of 
average passenger miles per trip and actual count of passengers in the current year and verified the 
mathematical accuracy of the PM with no exception. 
 

l. Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle 
miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and determine that 
stated procedures are followed.  Select a haphazard sample of the source documents used to record 
charter and school bus mileage and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations.  

 
Results - The procedure identified above is not applicable.  Per inquiry with Omnitrans’ management, 
Omnitrans did not provide charter or school bus services. 

 
m. For actual VRM data, document the collection and recording methodology and determine that deadhead 

miles are systematically excluded from the computation.  This is accomplished as follows: 
 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed 
trips.  Select a haphazard sample of the days that service is operated and re-compute the daily total 
of missed trips and missed vehicle revenue miles.  Test the arithmetical accuracy of the 
summarization.  

 
Results – For the MBDO and MBPT modes, Omnitrans tracks actual VRM in real time using the 
Trapeze Intelligent Transportation System from which data is uploaded monthly to the TransTrack 
Manager System. The results are reviewed by management against total scheduled VRM and any 
discrepancies are investigated. The tracking is performed on fixed routes only which will not 
include deadhead miles. We selected a sample of five MBDO routes and seven MBPT routes, 
recalculated the VRMs and compared them to amounts used in the total VRM without exception.   
 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate and 
subtract deadhead mileage.  Select a haphazard sample of the hubodometer readings and determine 
that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are applied as prescribed.  
Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summarization of intermediate accumulations.  

 
Results - This procedure is not applicable.   

 
 If actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select haphazard samples of the vehicle logs and 

determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA’s 
definitions.  

 
Results - For the DRPT mode, Revenue Miles are calculated based on the odometer readings from 
the first pickup to the last drop off.  Deadhead miles are excluded from the Revenue Miles 
calculations.  We haphazardly selected 30 trips to test and noted without exception that the 
deadhead miles are not included in the Revenue Miles calculations. 
 

 n.  For rail modes, review the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRM and determine that      
locomotive miles are not included in the computation.  

 
Results - The procedure identified above is not applicable as Omnitrans does not provide rail service.   
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o. If FG DRM are reported, interview the person responsible for maintaining and reporting the NTD data 
whether the operations meet FTA's definition of fixed guideway (FG) in that the service is:   
 
 Rail, trolleybus (TB), ferryboat (FB), or aerial tramway (TR) or  
 Bus (MB) service operating over exclusive or controlled access rights-of-way (ROW), and  

 Access is restricted  
 Legitimate need for restricted access is demonstrated by peak period level of service D or 

worse on parallel adjacent highway, and  
 Restricted access is enforced for freeways; priority lanes used by other high occupancy vehicles 

(HOV) (i.e., vanpools (VP) carpools (CP)) must demonstrate safe operation (see Fixed 
Guideway Segments form (S-20)) 

 High Occupancy/Toll (HO/T) lanes meet FTA requirements for traffic flow of transit vehicles 
and for transit use of toll revenues, and that the transit agency has provided to NTD a copy of 
the State’s certification to the US Secretary of Transportation that it has established a 
program for monitoring, assessing and reporting on the operation of the HOV facility with 
HO/T lanes. 

 
Results – We interviewed the management of Omnitrans and noted that they do not report FG DRMs. 
The Omnitrans services do not operate over exclusive or controlled access rights of way or High 
Occupancy/Toll lanes. 

 
p. Discuss the measurement of FG DRM with the person reporting the NTD data and determine that the 

mileage is computed in accordance with FTA’s definitions of FG DRM.  Inquire whether there were 
service changes during the year that resulted in an increase or decrease in DRM.  If a service change 
resulted in a change in overall DRM re-compute the average monthly DRM, and reconcile the total to 
the FG DRM reported on the FFA-10. 
 
Results – This procedure is not applicable per discussion above in procedure o. 

 
 q.  The auditor should inquire if any temporary interruptions in transit service occurred during the report 

year.  If these interruptions were due to maintenance or rehabilitation improvements to a FG segment(s), 
the following apply:  
 
 DRMs for the segment(s) should be reported for the entire year if the interruption is less than 12 

months in duration.  The months of operation on the S-20 should be reported as 12.  The transit 
agency should have completed a Form Note describing the interruption.  
 

 If the improvements cause a service interruption on the S-20s DRM lasting more than 12 months, 
the transit agency should contact the validation analyst to discuss.  FTA will make a 
determination on how the DRM should be reported.  

 
Results - This procedure is not applicable per discussion above in procedure o. 

 
r. Measure FG DRM from maps or by retracing route.  

 
Results - This procedure is not applicable per discussion above in procedure o. 
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s. Discuss with the person reporting the NTD data whether other public transit agencies operate service 
over the same FG as the transit agency.  If yes, determine that the transit agency coordinated with the 
other transit agency(ies) such that the DRM for the segment of FG are reported only once to the NTD 
on the FFA-10.  Each transit agency should report the actual VRM, PM and operating expense (OE) for 
the service operated over the same fixed guideway. 

 
Results - This procedure is not applicable per discussion above in procedure o. 

  
t. Review the S-20 form. Discuss the commencement date of revenue service for each FG segment with 

the persons reporting NTD data the Agency Revenue Service Start Date for any segments added in the 
2013 report year. This is the commencement date of revenue service for each FG segment. Determine 
that the date is reported as when the agency began revenue service. This may be later than the Original 
Date of Revenue Service if the transit agency is not the original operator. If a segment was added for 
the 2013 report year, the Agency Revenue Service Date must occur within the transit agency’s 2013 
fiscal year. Segments are summarized by like characteristics. Note that for apportionment purposes 
under the Capital Program for Fixed Guideway Modernization, the 7- year age requirement for fixed 
guideway segments is based on the report year when the segment is first reported by any NTD transit 
agency. This pertains to segments reported for the first time in the current report year. Even if a transit 
agency can document an Agency Revenue Service Start Date prior to the current NTD report year, FTA 
will only consider segments continuously reported to NTD.  

 
Results - This procedure is not applicable per discussion above in procedure o.   
 

u. Compare operating expenses with audited financial data, after reconciling items are removed. 
 

Results - Operating expenses were compared to the trial balances subject to audit without exception.   
  

v. If the transit agency purchases transportation services, interview the personnel reporting the NTD data 
regarding the amount of PT generated fare revenues.  The PT fare revenues should equal the amount 
reported on the Contractual Relationship form (B-30)  

 
Results - We identified the fare revenues reported on the B-30 and reconciled the amounts to the 
general ledger without exception.   
 

w. If the transit agency's report contains data for PT services and assurances of the data for those services 
is not included, obtain a copy of the Independent Auditor Statement (IAS) or Federal Funding 
Allocation data of the PT service.  Attach a copy of the statement to the report.  Note as an exception if 
the transit agency does not have an IAS for the PT data.  

 
Results – The data for purchased transportation are included in the reporting by Omnitrans and 
therefore no IAS for the purchased transportation services is included.  
 

x. If the transit agency uses PT services, obtain a copy of the PT contract and determine that the contract 
(1) specifies the specific public transportation services to be provided; (2) specifies the monetary 
consideration obligated by the transit agency or governmental unit contracting for the service; (3) 
specifies the period covered by the contract and that this period is the same as, or a portion of, the 
period covered by the transit agency's NTD report; and (4) is signed by representatives of both parties 
to the contract.  Interview the person responsible for maintaining the NTD data regarding the retention 
of the executed contract, and determine that the copies of the contacts are retained for three years.  
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Results - We inspected the MBPT and DRPT service contracts and determined that they contained the 
items noted above without exception.  We inquired with the Planning and Scheduling Manager and the 
Operations Services Supervisor, regarding Omnitrans’ retention policy for executed contracts for 
purchased transportation programs.  Per inquiry, the current practice is to retain contracts for at least 
three years. 
 

y. If the transit agency provides service in more than one UZA, or between a UZA and a non-UZA, 
inquire of the person responsible for maintaining the NTD data regarding the procedures for allocation 
of statistics between UZAs and non-UZA. Agencies that operate service in both within a UZA and 
outside of a UZA (non-UZA) will report to the 2013 Annual NTD database. Agencies who operate 
service only in a non-UZA should report the 2013 NTD Rural Report. Obtain and review the FG 
segment worksheets, route maps and urbanized area boundaries used for allocating the statistics, and 
determine that the stated procedure is followed and that the computations are correct.  

 
Results - Omnitrans provides services in more than one UZA but does not provide services to non 
urbanized areas.  For the MBDO and MBPT modes allocations to urbanized areas are based on trip 
pattern analysis.  The number of yearly trips per pattern is multiplied by the number of miles 
determined for each UZA. Eight allocations were tested for the MBDO and MBPT services without 
exception.  
 
For the DRPT mode, vehicles are dispatched from two depots, one in each UZA. Ridership is tracked by 
depot and used to calculate the percentages for the UZA split of other data.  

 
z. Compare the data reported on Total Modal Operating Expenses data (F-30, line 15, column e), Actual 

Vehicle Revenue Miles and Passenger Miles Traveled (S-10, lines 12 and 20, column d) to comparable 
data for the prior report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year. 
For actual VRM, PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more than 10%, or FG DRM 
data that have increased or decreased, interview transit agency management regarding the specifics of 
operations that led to the increases or decreases in the data relative to the prior reporting period. The 
auditor should document the specific procedures followed, documents reviewed, and tests performed in 
the work papers. The work papers should be available for FTA review for a minimum of three years 
following the NTD report year. The auditor may perform additional procedures, which are agreed to by 
the auditor and the transit agency, if desired. The auditor should clearly identify the additional 
procedures performed in a separate attachment to the statement as procedures that were agreed to by the 
transit agency and the auditor, but not by FTA.  

 
Results – The following fluctuations over 10% were noted on the F-30 and S-10 Forms: 
 

 A 21.6% increase in Passenger Miles for MBPT  
 A 10.4% increase in Operating Expenses for MBPT 
 A 10.6% increase in Passenger Miles for DRPT 

 
The 21.6% increase in Passenger Miles and 10.4% increase in Operating Expenses for MBPT are due 
to the adding of a new route at the end of the 2011-12 fiscal year. 
 
The 10.6% increase in Passenger Miles for DRPT is due to an increase in the usage of the demand 
response service.  
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Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Omnitrans for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Professional 
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted 
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our engagement 
letter.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our 
audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings  
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by Omnitrans are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no 
transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.  
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
 

 Management’s estimate of the risk management liability for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims is 
based on an actuarial valuation and an 80% confidence level. 

 Management’s estimate of the depreciation of capital assets is based upon the estimated useful lives of the 
related capital assets.   

 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop depreciation estimates in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.   
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  The 
misstatements noted below were corrected by management: 
 

 Risk management IBNR liabilities were understated by $2,009,951.  The amount of $935,517 was posted.  
The remaining difference is considered an uncorrected misstatement. 

 $1,477,256 in CNG fuel tax credits were recorded as unearned revenue and an adjustment was proposed 
to recognize the amount as revenue. 

 
The uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements are noted below.  Management has determined that 
their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

 $439,976 of indirect costs were charged to purchased assets and capitalized.  An adjustment was proposed 
to reflect those charges as period costs. 

 The remaining difference between the estimated risk management IBNR liability using consistent inputs 
and the amount recorded was $1,074,434 and was proposed as an adjustment. 

 
Disagreements with Management  
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to 
the financial statements or the auditors’ report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated December 30, 2013. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion 
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Omnitrans’ auditors.  However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention.   
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Other Matters 
 
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries 
of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method 
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Omnitrans and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 30, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, 
THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND  

CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE §8879.50 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2013.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Omnitrans’ internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified a certain 
deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs, as item 2013-001, to be a material weakness. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Omnitrans’ financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations and California 
Government Code §8879.50 et seq., and the allocation instructions of San Bernardino Associated Governments, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, Section 
6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, or the California Government Code §8879.50 et seq. 
 
Omnitrans’ Response to Findings  
 
Omnitrans’ response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs.  Omnitrans’ response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 30, 2013 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
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Finding 2013-001 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Criteria: 
 
The financial statements should be prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP).  In accordance with GAAP: 
 

 Revenues should be recorded when earned and realizable. 
 Risk management costs and liabilities relating to incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims should be 

estimated and accrued in the period in which the event occurs.  The liability should be based on the 
estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims. 
 

Condition: 
 
Based on our audit procedures, we noted that certain transactions were recorded based on considerations other 
than GAAP as follows: 
 

 CNG Fuel tax credits were earned, but were recorded as deferred revenue delaying the recognition of the 
revenue until future costs with associated planned projects were incurred. 

 The inputs to the estimate used for the recognition of the liability for IBNR claims were applied 
inconsistently.  The liability posted was based on remaining budget considerations rather than an 
established confidence level to record IBNR claims. 
 

Context: 
 
The treatment of certain accounting transactions was not in accordance with U.S. GAAP and accordingly audit 
adjustments were proposed.  Refer to the Cause, below, for additional context.   
 
Effect: 
 
The condition resulted in the following proposed adjustments: 

 $1,477,256 in CNG fuel tax credits were recorded as deferred revenue.  An adjustment was proposed to 
recognize the amount as revenue. 

 $2,009,951 was proposed as an adjustment representing the difference between the estimated IBNR 
liability recorded by management and the amount which would have been recorded when considering the 
IBNR confidence level recorded in prior year. 
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Cause: 
 
Based on our procedures, we noted the following: 
 
CNG Fuel Tax Credits 
 
Management communicated that the amounts for the CNG fuel tax credits were recorded as deferred revenue 
because Omnitrans had determined that the amounts were going to be used as a match for a capital purchase in the 
future.  However, in accordance with GAAP, the amounts should have been recognized as revenue when 
earned/received.   
 
Risk Management Liabilities 
 
Management communicated that past practice was to record IBNR claims liabilities at varying confidence levels.  
These confidence levels were determined at yearend after Omnitrans management evaluated yearend financial 
results.  To the extent that additional expenses could be recorded without impacting the budget or resulting in a 
deficit for the fiscal year, additional amounts would be accrued.   
 
This practice continued during the current fiscal year.  This practice resulted in material differences between the 
IBNR claims liability estimates in the current year when compared to the prior year.  Management had originally 
accrued the IBNR liability at a 50 percent confidence level for FY 2013, compared to a confidence level of 85 
percent for FY 2012.  As a result, audit adjustments were proposed for the IBNR claims liabilities.  Specific 
details are provided in the next paragraph.   
 
As discussed in the Effect an adjustment to increase income was proposed for the fuel tax credit of $1,477,256.  In 
response to this adjustment, management increased the IBNR claims expense/liability by $935,517.  This was 
consistent with Omnitrans’ past practice of recording IBNR claims liability expenses to the extent that such 
amounts would not result in a deficit for the fiscal year, but is inconsistent with GAAP.    
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that Omnitrans modify its financial reporting policies and procedures to ensure that transactions 
are recorded in accordance with GAAP.  While the operating budget is utilized to manage operations, financial 
reporting policies and procedures should reflect the results of Omnitrans’ operations in a manner that is in 
conformity with GAAP. 
 
View of Responsible Official and Planned Corrective Actions: 
 
As recommended Omnitrans will ensure its financial reporting policies and procedures are in accordance with 
GAAP.  Additionally, Omnitrans will, with the approval of the Board of Directors, develop and implement a 
“Risk Policy” that clearly establishes the level of risk for future IBNR claims. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, 
THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND  

CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE §8879.50 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2013.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Omnitrans’ internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified a certain 
deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs, as item 2013-001, to be a material weakness. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Omnitrans’ financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, including Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations and California 
Government Code §8879.50 et seq., and the allocation instructions of San Bernardino Associated Governments, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, Section 
6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, or the California Government Code §8879.50 et seq. 
 
Omnitrans’ Response to Findings  
 
Omnitrans’ response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs.  Omnitrans’ response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 30, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY  
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Omnitrans’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Omnitrans’ major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Omnitrans’ major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Omnitrans’ major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Omnitrans’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Omnitrans’ compliance. 
 

8270 Aspen Street    Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730   Tel: 909.466.4410    Fax: 909.466.4431   www.vtdcpa.com

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants

VALUE  THE  D IFFERENCE

FRESN O  •   L AGUN A H I L LS   •   PALO ALTO  •   P LEASANTON  •   RAN C HO CUC AMON GA  •   ri  v ersi    d e   •   Sacramento
23



 

4 
 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Omnitrans complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2013.   
 
Other Matters 
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2013-002 and 2013-003.  Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified 
with respect to these matters. 
 
Omnitrans’ responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.  Omnitrans' response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Omnitrans is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered Omnitrans’ internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Omnitrans’ internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 
2013-002 and 2013-003, which we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic financial statements.  We issued 
our report thereon dated December 30, 2013, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.  Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.  
 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 30, 2013 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Federal Federal
Domestic Financial Amount

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Assistance Grant Assistance Provided to 
Program Title Number Number Expenditure Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Direct Assistance:

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0624-00 735,761$       735,731$         
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0660-00 728                728                  
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0699-00 203,363         753,420           
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0746-00 953,068         403,011           
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-03-0816-00 36,609,448    -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0030-00 -                    -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0035-01 -                    -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0071-00 200,425         200,426           
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0123-00 -                    -                       
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0152-00 176,818         176,818           
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0191-00 31,935           31,935             
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants 20.500 CA-04-0219-00 5,000,000      -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-X929-00 9,097             -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-95-X055-00 -                    -                       
ARRA Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-96-X058-00 95,417           80,690             
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-95-X124-00 16,013,022    -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y064-00 1,489,013      1,485,227        
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y098-00 88,007           -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y164-00 89,825           -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y251-00 -                    -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y333-00 22,150           -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y396-00 8,379             -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y495-00 8,757             -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y602-00 1,203,089      -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y681-00 3,959,790      -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y775-00 4,172,220      -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y850-00 374,164         -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-96-Y156-00 4,898,490      -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Y939-00 1,924,783      -                       
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 20.507 CA-90-Z009-00 9,858,042      -                       
FTA Insurance Reimbursement 20.507 N/A 25,000           -                       
    subtotal - Federal Transit Cluster 88,150,791    3,867,986        

FY06-08 Section 5316 JARC Capital 20.516 CA-37-X090-00 978,237         177,804           
FY09-10 Section 5316 JARC Capital 20.516 CA-37-X146-00 667,457         53,476             
FY06-08 - 5317 New Freedom (Amend) 20.521 CA-57-X017-00 214,524         189,296           
FY09-10 - 5317 New Freedom 20.521 CA-57-X062-00 92,195           92,195             
    subtotal - Transit Services Programs Cluster 1,952,413      512,771           

Holt Boulevard Alternative Analysis 20.522 CA-39-0008-00 412,996         -                       
FEMA-Dept of Homeland Security 97.075 N/A 137,132         -                       

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 90,653,332$  4,380,757$      
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NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
(A) Scope of Presentation 

 
The accompanying schedule presents only the expenditures incurred by Omnitrans that are reimbursable 
under federal programs of federal financial assistance.  For the purposes of this schedule, federal financial 
assistance includes both federal financial assistance received directly from a federal agency, as well as 
federal funds received indirectly by Omnitrans from a non-federal agency or other organization.  Only the 
portion of program expenditures reimbursable with such federal funds is reported in the accompanying 
schedule.  Program expenditures in excess of the maximum federal reimbursement authorized or the portion 
of the program expenditures that were funded with state, local or other non-federal funds are excluded from 
the accompanying schedule.  
 

(B) Basis of Accounting 
 
The expenditures included in the accompanying schedule were reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  
Under the accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are recognized when Omnitrans becomes obligated for 
payment as a result of the receipt of the related goods and services.  Expenditures reported included any 
property or equipment acquisitions incurred under the federal program. 
 

(C) Subrecipients 
 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, Omnitrans provided $4,380,757 in federal awards to 
subrecipients from funding provided by the U.S. Department of Transportation – Federal Transit Cluster 
(CFDA Nos. 20.500 and 20.507) and Transit Services Programs Cluster, New Freedom Program (CFDA 
No. 20.521) and JARC Capital Program (CFDA No. 20.516). 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes
Significant Deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be material weaknesses? None noted

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:

Material Weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
 Circular A-133, Section .510(a) Yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.500, 20.507 Federal Transit Cluster (includes ARRA)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 2,719,600$       
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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Finding 2013-001 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Criteria: 
 
The financial statements should be prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP).  In accordance with GAAP: 
 

 Revenues should be recorded when earned and realizable. 
 Risk management costs and liabilities relating to incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims should be 

estimated and accrued in the period in which the event occurs. The liability should be based on the 
estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims. 
 

Condition: 
 
Based on our audit procedures, we noted that certain transactions were recorded based on considerations other 
than GAAP as follows: 
 

 CNG Fuel tax credits were earned, but were recorded as deferred revenue delaying the recognition of the 
revenue until future costs with associated planned projects were incurred. 

 The inputs to the estimate used for the recognition of the liability for IBNR claims were applied 
inconsistently. The liability posted was based on remaining budget considerations rather than an 
established confidence level to record IBNR claims. 
 

Context: 
 
The treatment of certain accounting transactions was not in accordance with U.S. GAAP and accordingly audit 
adjustments were proposed. Refer to the Cause, below, for additional context.   
 
Effect: 
 
The condition resulted in the following proposed adjustments: 

 $1,477,256 in CNG fuel tax credits were recorded as deferred revenue. An adjustment was proposed to 
recognize the amount as revenue. 

 $2,009,951 was proposed as an adjustment representing the difference between the estimated IBNR 
liability recorded by management and the amount which would have been recorded when considering the 
IBNR confidence level recorded in prior year. 
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Cause: 
 
Based on our procedures, we noted the following: 
 
CNG Fuel Tax Credits 
 
Management communicated that the amounts for the CNG fuel tax credits were recorded as deferred revenue 
because Omnitrans had determined that the amounts were going to be used as a match for a capital purchase in the 
future.  However, in accordance with GAAP, the amounts should have been recognized as revenue when 
earned/received.   
 
Risk Management Liabilities 
 
Management communicated that past practice was to record IBNR claims liabilities at varying confidence levels.  
These confidence levels were determined at yearend after Omnitrans management evaluated yearend financial 
results.  To the extent that additional expenses could be recorded without impacting the budget or resulting in a 
deficit for the fiscal year, additional amounts would be accrued.   
 
This practice continued during the current fiscal year. This practice resulted in material differences between the 
IBNR claims liability estimates in the current year when compared to the prior year.  Management had originally 
accrued the IBNR liability at a 50 percent confidence level for FY 2013, compared to a confidence level of 85 
percent for FY 2012.  As a result, audit adjustments were proposed for the IBNR claims liabilities.  Specific 
details are provided in the next paragraph.   
 
As discussed in the Effect an adjustment to increase income was proposed for the fuel tax credit of $1,477,256.  In 
response to this adjustment, management increased the IBNR claims expense/liability by $935,517.  This was 
consistent with Omnitrans’ past practice of recording IBNR claims liability expenses to the extent that such 
amounts would not result in a deficit for the fiscal year, but is inconsistent with GAAP.    
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that Omnitrans modify its financial reporting policies and procedures to ensure that transactions 
are recorded in accordance with GAAP. While the operating budget is utilized to manage operations, financial 
reporting policies and procedures should reflect the results of Omnitrans’ operations in a manner that is in 
conformity with GAAP. 
 
View of Responsible Official and Planned Corrective Actions: 
 
As recommended Omnitrans will ensure its financial reporting policies and procedures are in accordance with 
GAAP.  Additionally, Omnitrans will, with the approval of the Board of Directors, develop and implement a 
“Risk Policy” that clearly establishes the level of risk for future IBNR claims. 
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Finding 2013-002 
 
Program: Federal Transit Cluster (includes ARRA) 
CFDA No.: 20.500 and 20.507 
Federal Grantor: U.S. Department of Transportation 
Award No.: Various 
Award Year: Various 
Compliance Requirement: Subrecipient Monitoring 
 
Criteria: 
 
In accordance with OMB Circular A-133 §___.400(d)(1), pass-through entities must inform subrecipients of 
CFDA title and number, award name and number, award year, if the award is R&D, and name of Federal agency. 
 
Condition: 
 
Omnitrans did not provide pertinent federal award information details (CFDA Title and number, award name and 
number, etc.) to its subrecipients. 
 
Questioned Costs: 
 
None 
 
Context: 
 
The condition above was identified during our examination of the subrecipient monitoring requirements of the 
program. 
 
Effect: 
 
As a result of the condition, there is an increased risk of noncompliance with subrecipient monitoring provisions. 
 
Cause: 
  
Required information was not consistently included in the executed subrecipient agreements or through other 
means. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that Omnitrans enhance subrecipient award procedures to ensure that required information is 
included in subrecipient communication at the time of award.  Additionally, we recommend that the required 
information is provided to all current subrecipients.   
 
View of Responsible Official and Planned Corrective Action: 
 
Omnitrans will enhance its subrecipient award procedures to ensure that all required information is included in 
subrecipient communication at the time of award.   
 

31



OMNITRANS  
 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
 

12 

Finding 2013-003 
 
Program: Federal Transit Cluster (includes ARRA) 
CFDA No.: 20.500 and 20.507 
Federal Grantor: U.S. Department of Transportation 
Award No.: Various 
Award Year: Various 
Compliance Requirement: Reporting 
 
Criteria: 
 
In accordance with OMB Circular A-133 §___.310(b)(5), pass-through entities should identify in the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards the total amount provided to subrecipients from each Federal program. 
 
Condition: 
 
Omnitrans did not consistently include the total amount provided to subrecipients from each Federal program.   
 
Questioned Costs: 
 
None 
 
Context: 
 
The condition above was identified during our examination of the reporting requirements of the program. 
 
Effect: 
 
As a result of the condition, there is an increased risk of noncompliance with reporting provisions. 
 
Cause: 
  
Certain amounts provided to subrecipients were initially excluded from the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that Omnitrans enhance its procedures to ensure that the total amount provided to subrecipients is 
included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.  
 
View of Responsible Official and Planned Corrective Action: 
 
Omnitrans will enhance its procedures to ensure the total amount provided to subrecipients is included on the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards.   
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Summarized below is the current status of all audit findings reported in the prior year audit’s schedule of audit 
findings and questioned costs. 
 
Financial Statement Findings 
 
None reported. 
 
 
Federal Awards Findings 
 
Finding No. Program CFDA No. Compliance 

Requirement
Status of Corrective Action

2012-1 Federal Transit Cluster 20.500 and 
20.507

Subrecipient 
Monitoring and 

Reporting

Partially implemented - See finding 
2013-002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON PROPOSITION 1B SCHEDULE OF 
UNSPENT FUNDS AND CASH DISBURSEMENTS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2013, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements.  Those financial statements are the responsibility of Omnitrans' management.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Omnitrans' basic financial statements.  The accompanying Proposition 1B Schedule of Unspent Funds 
and Cash Disbursements is presented for purposes of additional analysis, to satisfy the requirements of  
Section 6667 of Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, the California Government Code §8879.50, and 
the California State Senate Bill 88 (2007), et seq. and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stated of America.  In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 30, 2013 
 

8270 Aspen Street    Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730   Tel: 909.466.4410    Fax: 909.466.4431   www.vtdcpa.com

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants

VALUE  THE  D IFFERENCE

FRESN O  •   L AGUN A H I L LS   •   PALO ALTO  •   P LEASANTON  •   RAN C HO CUC AMON GA  •   ri  v ersi    d e   •   Sacramento
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SCHEDULE OF UNSPENT FUNDS AND CASH DISBURSEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

2 
 

PTMISEA (1) CTSG (2) Total

Unspent Prop 1B funds as of June 30, 2012 1,822,358$      3,014,146$      4,836,504$      

Interest revenue earned on unspent Prop 1B funds during fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013 994                  1,633               2,627               

Prop 1B disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2013 (758,664)          (1,606,541)       (2,365,205)       

Unspent Prop 1B funds as of June 30, 2013 1,064,688$      1,409,238$      2,473,926$         

(1) Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account

(2) California Transit Security Grant, including CalEMA program from prior year
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As the Interim CEO/General Manager, I see many opportunities for us to make a positive and 
secure future for the Agency. 
 
At this very moment we are improving our fleet and changing its composition to welcome our 
flagship service sbX Bus Rapid Transit (BRT).  New technologies are being offered to our 
customers through NexTrip, WiFi and pre-emptive signaling to reduce travel times.  
  
There are of course challenges that face us as well; reduced funding levels, and rising operational 
costs, however, I believe leadership and trust can weather any storm. At times it is not easy, and 
yes there may be some rough water ahead, but we can set the right course together and make this 
an even better Agency for us and for those to follow.  
  
Scott Graham  
Interim CEO/General Manager 
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Director of Finance 
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Serving the communities of Chino Hills, Colton, County of San Bernardino, Fontana, Grand Terrace, Highland, 
Loma Linda, Montclair, Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, Redlands, Rialto, San Bernardino, Upland and Yucaipa. 

i

January 9, 2014 

To the Members of the Omnitrans Board of Directors, CEO/General Manager and Citizens of 
the County of San Bernardino: 

California Government Code sections 25250 and 25253 require that every general-purpose 
local government publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of 
audited financial statements. This report is published in fulfillment of that requirement for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

This report provides an independently audited account of the financial condition of the Agency. 
The financial statements, supplemental schedules, and statistical information are the 
representations of Omnitrans’ management. Management assumes full responsibility for the 
completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a 
comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because 
the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any 
material misstatements. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for their 
accuracy, completeness and fairness.

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, audited 
Omnitrans financial statements. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, 
are free of material misstatement.  The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, 
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that Omnitrans’ financial  
statements  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  June  30,  2013  are  fairly  represented  in conformity 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The independent auditor’s report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic 
financial statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in 
conjunction with it. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of Omnitrans was part of a broader, 
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor 
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent 
auditor to report on the fair presentation of the financial statements, with special 
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of 
federal awards. These reports are included in a separate Single Audit report. 

As stewards of the taxpayer’s money, Omnitrans continues to achieve its primary 
objective of safeguarding the funds entrusted to us. Our primary focus is the planning, 
securing and controlling of Omnitrans’ financial resources.  

Omnitrans takes great pride in the fact that previously issued CAFRs have been 
awarded a prestigious award by The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 
in the form of its Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. 
Omnitrans has received the GFOA “Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Finance Reporting” a total of ten times. These prior awards and the one that we are 
currently seeking this year evidence the significant improvements regarding the 
strengthening of internal controls and our compliance with stringent GFOA standards for 
professional financial reporting. Omnitrans’ system of internal control is supported by 
written policies and procedures and is continually reviewed, evaluated and modified to 
meet current needs. 
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PROFILE OF OMNITRANS 

Omnitrans was founded in 1976 under a Joint Powers Agreement to provide 
transportation service to the San Bernardino Valley.  Omnitrans is the major public 
transportation provider in the San Bernardino Valley, with a service area of 
approximately 456 square miles, serving fifteen municipalities, and many 
unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County.  Omnitrans also travels beyond the 
service area to Pomona and Riverside, to provide links to neighboring transit agencies.  
The service area is bordered by the Los Angeles County line to the west, the San 
Gabriel and San Bernardino Mountains to the north, Yucaipa in the east and the 
Riverside County line to the south.  The map below shows the Omnitrans service area.  
Employees work out of two locations:  East Valley (San Bernardino) and West Valley 
(Montclair).

The board of directors, made up of elected officials from each of the member 
jurisdictions governs the Agency.  The member jurisdictions include the following: 

Each city has one member and the County of San Bernardino has five members on the 
Board, who represent their respective County Districts.  The Board is responsible for all 
policy, regulatory, and budgetary decisions of the Agency. 

Service Area Map

Three Board committees oversee specific functional areas of the Agency with the 
provision to create ad-hoc committees as needed.  These subcommittees are:

City of Chino City of Highland City of Redlands 
City of Chino Hills City of Loma Linda City of Rialto 

City of Colton City of Montclair City of San Bernardino 
City of Fontana City of Ontario City of Upland 

City of Grand Terrace  City of Rancho City of Yucaipa 
County of San Bernardino 
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1. Executive Committee 
2. Administrative and Finance Committee 
3. Plans and Programs Committee 

As of June 30, 2013, Omnitrans had a staff of 635 employees to provide its services.  
The CEO/General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day management of the 
Agency and acts as the liaison to the Board of Directors and each of the committees.  
Reporting to the CEO/General Manager are the following departments: 

1. Administration 
2. Human Resources 
3. Maintenance 
4. Marketing 
5. Operations 
6. Planning 
7. Safety and Security 
8. Integrated Project Management Office 

Reporting to the Chief Financial Officer are the following departments: 

1. Finance 
2. Information Technology 
3. Procurement 

As cited in its Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), Omnitrans was created as a single 
umbrella agency to serve the bus transit needs of the San Bernardino Valley.  
Provisions were made in the JPA to: 1) Establish a uniform fare policy within the service 
area, 2) To coordinate a region wide bus transit marketing program, and 3) To 
consolidate bus transit operating and administrative functions in order to achieve 
increased economies of scale. 

To meet the bus transportation service demands efficiently and effectively, Omnitrans 
uses a multimodal approach to the provisions of service.  The types of services 
presently offered are summarized below: 

Local Fixed Route Service 

 In accordance with the Operational Standards for the provision of service, 
Omnitrans operates 27 fixed routes and five OmniGo local circulator routes. 

 Routes operate at 15 to 60 minute intervals. 
 All routes operate Monday through Friday with service beginning at 3:48 AM and 

ending at 11:13 PM. On Saturdays there are 25 routes and four OmniGo 
circulators in operation with service beginning at 5:13 AM and ending at 10:16 
PM.  On Sundays there are 23 routes and four OmniGo circulators in service 
which begin at 5:52 AM and end at 7:54 PM. 
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 Coordinated local fixed-route service with Orange County Transit Authority, 
Foothill Transit, Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
(limited), Riverside Transit Agency, and Mountain Area Regional Transit 
Authority; operated under Cooperative and/or Joint Service Agreements between 
Omnitrans and neighboring transit operators. 

Regional Fixed Route Service 

 Route 215 is a cross-county service provided by Omnitrans.  This route provides 
service between the Omnitrans 4th Street Transit Mall and Riverside Transit 
Agency’s Downtown Terminal. 

 This route operates on 20/30-minute and 60-minute frequencies. 

FY12 Fixed-Route Service Frequency by Route 

Route
Count 

    Service Days/Frequency 

Route Route Name Weekday Saturday Sunday

1 1 ARMC - San Bernardino - Del Rosa 15/30 30 30 

2 2 Cal State - E Street - Loma Linda 15/30 20 20/30 

3 3 Baseline - Highland - San Bernardino CCW 15/20 20 20 

4 4 Baseline - Highland - San Bernardino CW 15/20 20 20 

5 5 San Bernardino - Del Rosa - Cal State 30/35 60 60 

6 7 N. San Bernardino - Sierra Way - San Bernardino 30/60 60 60 

7 8 San Bernardino - Mentone - Yucaipa 60 60 120 

8 9 San Bernardino - Redlands - Yucaipa 60 60 120 

9 10 Fontana - Baseline - San Bernardino 30/60 60 60 

10 11 San Bernardino - Muscoy - Cal State 30/60 60 60 

11 14 Fontana - Foothill - San Bernardino 15 15/30 15 

12 15  Fontana - San Bndo/Highland - Redlands 30 60 60 

13 19 Fontana –Colton-Redlands 30 60 60 

14 20 Fontana Metrolink - Via Hemlock - Kaiser 30 60 60 

15 22 North Rialto - Riverside Ave - ARMC 30 60 60 

16 29 Bloomington - Valley Blvd - Kaiser 60 60 * 

17 308/309 OmniGo:  Yucaipa 30/60 30 60 

18 310 OmniGo:  Yucaipa 30/60 * * 

19 325 OmniGo:  Grand Terrace 70 70 70 

20 215 San Bernardino – Riverside 20/30 60 60 

21 61 Fontana-Ontario Mills-Pomona 15 15 15 
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22 63 Chino-Ontario-Upland 60 60 60 

23 65 Montclair-Chino Hills 60 60 60 

24 66 Fontana-Foothill Blvd.-Montclair 15/30 30 30 

25 67 Montclair-Baseline-Fontana 60 * * 

26 68 Chino-Montclair-Chaffey College 20/40 60 * 

27 80 Montclair— OntConvCntr – Chaffey College 60 60 60 

28 81 Ontario-Ontario Mills-Chaffey College 60 * * 

29 82 Rancho Cucamonga-Fontana-Sierra Lakes 60 60 60 

30 83 Upland-Euclid-Chino 60 60 60 

31 365 OmniGo:  Chino Hills 60 60 60 
   

      
Metrolink Regional Commuter Rail Feeder Service 

 Metrolink service is provided between Omnitrans service area, Los Angeles, 
Riverside, Orange, Ventura and San Diego Counties by Southern California 
Regional Rail Authority. 

 Omnitrans provides feeder bus service to seven Metrolink Stations located in 
San Bernardino, Rialto, Fontana, Rancho Cucamonga, Upland, Montclair and 
East Ontario. 

 Metrolink ticket/pass is good for one free ride going to or leaving from any 
Metrolink Station that an Omnitrans bus serves. Tickets must be valid for the 
date on which you’re riding the bus. 

Access

 In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Omnitrans 
provides wheelchair lift equipped vans for curb-to-curb transportation services. 

 Reservations for service must be made one day in advance of your travel needs, 
with the option to call up to seven days in advance. 

 Access operates during the same days and hours as fixed route buses within a ¾ 
mile range of routes.

 Who can ride Access? – Those persons with an Omnitrans (or other transit 
agency) ADA certification ID card.  Persons with an Omnitrans Disability card.  
Personal Care Attendants providing personal care to an ADA certified rider.  
Companions (Adult accompanying person with a disability) and/or Children of a 
qualified Adult ADA certified rider. (Maximum of two children 46” tall and under 
may ride free.  Children under age 6 and/or under 60 pounds must travel in a 
rider supplied child restraint device). 
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Omnilink

 Omnilink is a general public demand response van service in the cities of Chino 
Hills and Yucaipa. 

 Reservations can be made for same day service on a space available basis.  
Reservations can also be made up to three days in advance. 

 Operates 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM, Monday through Friday. 
 Omnilink is available to the general public on a first come first service basis. 

OmniGo Circulator Service 

 OmniGo is a new fixed route community circulator service that operates in the 
cities of Chino Hills, Grand Terrace, and Yucaipa. 

 Implemented in September of 2010, it connects points of interest within each city 
and provides connectivity to Omnitrans fixed route bus service. 

 All OmniGo services are contracted out by Omnitrans and operated by a private 
contractor.

 The vehicles used are the 16-passenger cutaway vehicles similar to those used 
by OmniLink and Access; this ensures that the service can both navigate the 
narrow residential streets and serve the residents of the city more cost-
effectively.

 OmniGo routes operate all week long, with the following spans: for Yucaipa 
Routes 308 and 309, Weekdays: 6:11 AM to 8:55 PM, Saturdays: 7:00 AM to 
8:25 PM, Sundays: 7:30 AM to 6:39 PM; for Yucaipa Route 310, Weekdays:6:00 
AM to 7:52 PM; for Grand Terrace Route 325, Weekdays: 5:17 AM to 8:19 PM, 
Saturdays: 7:17 AM to 6:14 PM, Sundays: 8:27 AM to 6:14 PM; for Chino Hills 
Route 365, Weekdays: 5:05 AM to 10:00 PM, Saturdays: 6:05 AM to 7:00 PM, 
and Sundays: 6:05 AM to 6:00 PM. 

 OmniGo fares are the same as those for other Omnitrans fixed route bus 
services.
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1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Omnitrans 
San Bernardino, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Omnitrans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Omnitrans’ basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Omnitrans as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

8270 Aspen Street    Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730   Tel: 909.466.4410    Fax: 909.466.4431   www.vtdcpa.com

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants

VALUE  THE  D IFFERENCE
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress on pages 3 through 12 and 32, respectively, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Omnitrans’ basic financial statements.  The introductory section and statistical section are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The introductory and 
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Prior-Year Comparative Information 

The prior year summarized comparative financial information has been derived from the Omnitrans’ 2012 
financial statements which were audited by other auditors and whose report dated October 31, 2012, expressed an 
unmodified opinion on the financial statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2013, on 
our consideration of Omnitrans’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Omnitrans’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Rancho Cucamonga, California 
December 30, 2013 
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As management of Omnitrans (the Agency), we offer the readers of the Agency’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the 
Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in the transmittal letter and financial 
statements, which are included in this report. 

Financial Highlights 

 At the end of fiscal year 2013, the Statement of Net Position presents total assets 
of $254.7 million and total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources of $39.6 
million and $55.5 thousand respectively.  Total assets increased 43.9 percent 
over the previous fiscal year, resulting largely from increases in Construction in 
progress that consists mainly of the E Street Bus Rapid Transit (sbX) project. 

 Total liabilities at fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 increased $7.3 million, up 22.7 
percent over previous fiscal year end.  Accounts payable increases of $7.0 
million were offset by reductions in unearned revenue of $2.0 million.  Noncurrent 
liabilities increased $1.5 million or 15.6 percent due to the estimated outstanding 
losses highlighted in the actuarial study of the self-insured workers compensation 
and liability programs as of June 30, 2013. 

 As a result of General Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 53, $55.5 thousand 
of Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives is presented on the 
Statement of net position at fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

 Operating revenues at fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 of $14.8 million 
decreased $542.9 thousand or 3.5 percent compared to last fiscal year end. 

 Operating expense, excluding depreciation, at fiscal year end June 30, 2013 
increased $1.3 million or 1.9 percent compared to last fiscal year end.   
Non-operating revenues, which include federal and local operating grants and 
pass-through to other agencies, increased by $6.2 million or 13.2 percent.  The 
increase is attributed to the increases in federal and local operating grants and 
revenue from the compressed natural gas (CNG) fuel tax credits.
At fiscal year end June 30, 2013 capital assistance of $89.6 million increased 
$55.2 million or 160.3 percent compared to the previous fiscal year.  This 
increase is due to increased activity on the sbX project, the major capital project 
in progress at Omnitrans.
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Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual financial report consists of two parts, Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis and the basic financial statements, including notes to the financial statements.  
The Agency financial statements offer key, high-level financial information about the 
Agency’s activities. 

The Agency is a government funded entity that follows enterprise fund accounting and 
presents its financial statement on the accrual basis of accounting.  The enterprise fund 
concept is similar to how private business enterprises are financed and operated. 

The statement of net position include information on all of the Agency’s assets and 
liabilities with the difference between assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows reported as 
net position.  Changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the Agency is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of revenues, expenses and change in net position present information 
regarding how the Agency net position changed during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, and amounts are measurable, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. 

Financial Statements Analysis 

The following tables summarize revenues, expenses and changes in net position 
comparing fiscal year 2013 with fiscal year 2012.  For additional information regarding 
the Agency’s financial activities for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, readers are 
encouraged to read this section in conjunction with the accompanying Notes to the 
Basic Financial Statements.

Revenues and Expenses 

Revenues

Omnitrans’ total revenues for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 show an increase of 
$62.3 million or 63.7 percent compared to last fiscal year.  Revenue from fares, pass 
and ticket sales less discount to pass sale vendors was $218.9 thousand less than the 
previous fiscal year.  Reduction in advertising revenues account for the majority of the 
decrease in total operating revenues.  Advertising revenue decreased $323.9 thousand 
or 40.2 percent compared to the previous fiscal year.  Other transportation revenues 
account for less than 0.3 percent of total operating revenues, were the same as prior 
fiscal year. 
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Federal and local operating grants for Omnitrans increased from $47.9 million in fiscal 
year 2012 to $54.1 million in fiscal year 2013.  This represents a $6.2 million or 13.0 
percent increase in revenues.  Omnitrans receives federal, state, and local funding 
which are utilized for both operating and capital expenditures. 

Financing the construction, operation and maintenance of public transportation systems 
involves many different types of funding sources, including federal and non-federal 
grants, and other revenue sources.  The source of federal and local operating grants 
and capital assistance include the following: 

 Measure I - the ½ cent sales tax collected throughout San Bernardino County for 
transportation improvements. 

 Local Transportation Fund (LTF) - Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
earmark ¼ percent of the state sales tax for transit.

 Urbanized Area Formula Program (5307) - transit capital and operating 
assistance in urbanized areas and for transportation-related planning. 

 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) - established to 
support surface transportation projects and other related efforts that contribute air 
quality improvements and provide congestion relief. 

 Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) – established to improve access to 
transportation services to employment and employment related activities for 
welfare recipients and eligible low-income individuals and to transport residents 
of urbanized areas and non-urbanized areas to suburban employment 
opportunities.

 New Freedom - a formula grant program aims to provide additional tools to 
overcome existing barriers facing Americans with disabilities seeking integration 
into the work force available to people with disabilities beyond the requirements 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). 

 State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) - derived from sales tax on gasoline and 
diesel fuel, this funding is an allocation to local transit agencies to fund a portion 
of the operations and capital costs associated with local mass transportation 
programs.

 Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement 
Account Program (PTMISEA) - created by Proposition 1B, is funding available to 
transit operators over a ten-year period. PTMISEA funds may be used for transit 
rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service 
enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, bus rapid transit 
improvements, or rolling stock (buses and rail cars) procurement, rehabilitation or 
replacement.
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Interest income for the Agency consists of quarterly return on investment with the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  The LAIF program offers local agencies the 
opportunity to participate in a major portfolio, which invests hundreds of millions of 
dollars, using the investment expertise of the State Treasurer's Office at no additional 
cost.  Total interest income for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was $24.9 thousand 
down $27.8 thousand or 52.7 percent compared to the previous fiscal year. 

Other non-operating revenues consists mainly of quarterly reimbursement to the 
Agency from the Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU) Local 1704 for wages and benefits 
paid by the Agency to ATU Officers/Stewards during normal work hours to process 
grievances.  Total other non-operating revenues decreased $11.6 thousand or 46.7 
percent below last fiscal year. 

OMNITRANS’ Revenues

Percent 
Increase Increase 

2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Passenger fares $ 14,317,987 14,536,931 (218,944) (1.5) 
Advertising revenue 481,994 805,904 (323,910) (40.2) 
Other Transportation Revenue 39,819 39,819 0  0.0 
Federal and local operating grants 54,087,458 47,875,811 6,211,647  13.0 
Capital assistance 89,571,554 34,412,696 55,158,858  160.3 
Interest Income 24,915 52,727 (27,812) (52.7) 
CNG fuel tax credit 1,477,256 0 1,477,256  
Other non-operating revenues/(expenses) 13,304 24,951 (11,647) (46.7) 

Total Revenue $ 160,014,287 97,748,839 62,265,448  63.7 

Expenses

Total expenses for fiscal year 2013 increased $2.4 million or 2.7 percent compared to 
the previous fiscal year.   The increase in pass-through to other agencies of $1.6 million 
and the increase in general and administrative expenses of $1.6 million accounts for the 
increase.

Wages, salaries and benefits decreased by $1.0 million or 2.6 percent under previous 
fiscal year.  This reduction is attributed mainly to the recapturing of cost associated with 
grant administration with the Agency’s cost allocation plan (CAP).  Wage and benefit 
costs for an employee’s time spent on grant administration is charged to the applicable 
grant.  For fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, $2.6 million in labor and benefit cost was 
recaptured compared to only $981.9 thousand in the previous fiscal year.  Additionally, 
Omnitrans continued to operate under a Board of Directors authorized wage freeze for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  Fiscal year 2013 is the fourth consecutive year 
wages, salaries and benefit were frozen. 
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Purchased transportation services for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 increased $202.1 
thousand or 2.3 percent compared to the previous fiscal year.  The increase in cost is 
attributed to increases negotiated in the contract.  

General and administrative expenses consist mainly of occupancy expenses (utilities, 
communication and office equipment, repairs, ground maintenance, stops and stations, 
etc.) and casualty & liability expenses (property, general, vehicle, and workers 
compensation insurance).  Occupancy expense increased $131.7 thousand, and 
casualty & liability cost increased $1.4 million when compared to the previous fiscal 
year.  The Agency continues to experience increases in its worker’s compensation 
liability claims.  Several programs were implemented to assist in preventing and 
mitigating worker’s compensation claims. 

Material and supplies increased $28.7 thousand or 0.3 percent over last fiscal year.  
The cost for liquefied natural gas (LNG) was relatively constant for fiscal year 2013 and 
fiscal year 2012.  Parts issued from inventory for repairs and preventive maintenance 
decreased slightly compared to the previous fiscal year.

A fuel hedging program was implemented May 6, 2009, to increase the predictability of 
Omnitrans costs and reduce operational uncertainty in the event of dramatic fuel price 
increases in the open market.  Omnitrans is authorized to hedge up to 150,000 gallons 
per month of compressed natural gas (CNG) on the New York Mercantile Exchange 
(NYMEX) exchange through Morgan Stanley. The hedging program is scheduled to 
end June 30, 2014.  Prior to the hedging program end date, management will seek 
Board of Directors approval to extend or terminate the program. 

Professional and technical services increased $253.2 thousand or 11.8 percent above 
previous fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  The increase is mainly attributed to the 
outsourcing of computer hardware and maintenance function of the Information 
Technology department. 

Omnitrans, as a direct grantee of FTA funding, is responsible for complying with specific 
FTA requirements. San Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG) conducts the 
solicitation, evaluation and selection process for FTA funds.  However Omnitrans does 
participate in the evaluation process as well, and is solely responsible for project 
management oversight for sub-recipients. The pass-through to other agencies 
represents federal and local reimbursements to sub-recipients for cost incurred on 
approved projects. Pass-through payments to other agencies increased $1.6 million or 
263.5 percent compared to the previous fiscal year.  

Loss on disposal of capital assets and depreciation decreased $190.7 thousand and 
$392.2 thousand respectively.  The decrease in loss on disposal of capital assets over 
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previous fiscal year is attributed to fewer fixed route and purchased transportation 
vehicles reaching its expected life and disposal. 

Miscellaneous expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 decreased $87.4 
thousand or 17.1 percent when compared for last fiscal year.  The decrease is mainly 
attributed to less travel and meeting, and employee training expenses. 

OMNITRANS’ Expenses

Percent 
Increase Increase 

2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Wages, salaries, and benefits $ 38,719,591 39,751,359 (1,031,768) (2.6) 
Purchased transportation services 9,084,344 8,882,227 202,117  2.3 
General and administrative expenses 9,341,532 7,779,983 1,561,549  20.1 
Materials and supplies 8,905,445 8,876,733 28,712  0.3 
Capital purchases 787,439 345,063 442,376  128.2 
Professional and technical services 2,400,460 2,147,300 253,160  11.8 
Advertising and printing 884,837 916,224 (31,387) (3.4) 
Pass-through to other agencies 2,254,293 620,108 1,634,185  263.5 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 80,713 271,438 (190,725) (70.3) 
Depreciation 16,678,098 17,070,294 (392,196) (2.3) 
Miscellaneous 415,430 507,243 (91,813) (17.1) 

Total Expenses $ 89,552,182 87,167,972 2,384,210  2.7 

Net Position 

The Agency’s total net position for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 increased $70.5 
million or 48.7 percent above fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  The $77.8 million 
increase in assets was offset by increases in both current and long-term liabilities.  
Ongoing construction of the sbX BRT project, sbX articulated bus procurement, 
preliminary engineering and design work for the San Bernardino Transit Center account 
for the majority of the increase in total assets. 
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OMNITRANS’ Statement of Net Position

Percent 
Increase Increase 

2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Assets:

Current and other assets $ 47,738,388 40,204,481 7,533,907  18.7 
Net Capital Assets 206,992,298 136,758,507 70,233,791  51.4 

Total Assets 254,730,686 176,962,988 77,767,698  43.9 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities 28,677,611 22,829,336 5,848,275  25.6 
Long-term Liabilities 10,882,899 9,417,445 1,465,454  15.6 

Total Liabilities 39,560,510 32,246,781 7,313,729  22.7 

Deferred inflow of resources: 
Accumulated increase in fair value 
  of hedging derivatives (Note 12) 55,513 55,300 213  0.0 

Total Deferred inflow of resources 55,513 55,300 213  0.0 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital 
  assets 206,566,907 136,112,836 70,454,071  51.8 
Restricted 0 0 0
Unrestricted 8,547,756 8,548,071 (315) (0.0) 

Total Net Position $ 215,114,663 144,660,907 70,453,756  48.7 

Changes in Net Position 

The change in net position is noted in the ending balance for fiscal year 2013 and the 
beginning balance in fiscal year 2012 on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position table.  The following Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position table illustrate and compare the various categories of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the two fiscal years. 
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OMNITRANS’ Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Percent 
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase Increase 

2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Revenues: 

Passenger fares $ 14,317,987 14,536,931 (218,944) (1.5) 
Advertising revenues 481,994 805,904 (323,910) (40.2) 
Other transportation revenues 39,819 39,819 0  0.0 

Total revenues 14,839,800 15,382,654 (542,854) (3.5) 

Expenses: 
Depreciation and amortization 16,678,098 17,070,294 (392,196) (2.3) 
Other operating expenses 70,539,078 69,206,132 1,332,946  1.9 

Total expenses 87,217,176 86,276,426 940,750  1.1 

Non-operating Revenue/(Expenses) 
Fed. & local operating grants (Note 3) 54,087,458 47,875,811 6,211,647  13.0 
Interest income 24,915 52,727 (27,812) (52.7) 
Interest expense (8,349) (3,980) (4,369) 109.8 
Pass-through to other agencies (Note 
10) (2,254,293) (620,108) (1,634,185) 263.5 
CNG fuel tax credit 1,477,256 0 1,477,256  
Other non-operating revenues 
(expenses) (67,409) (246,487) 179,078  (72.7) 

Total non-operating revenues 53,259,578 47,057,963 6,201,615  13.2 
Income before capital contribution (19,117,798) (23,835,809) 4,718,011  (19.8) 

Capital contributions 
Capital assistance 89,571,554 34,412,696 55,158,858  160.3 

Total capital contributions 89,571,554 34,412,696 55,158,858  160.3 

Change in net position 70,453,756 10,576,887 59,876,869  566.1 

Net position, beginning of year 144,660,907 134,084,020 10,576,887  7.9

Net position, end of year $ 215,114,663 144,660,907 70,453,756  48.7 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2013, the Agency had a total of $207.0 million invested in capital assets.  
This total represents an overall increase of $70.3 million or 51.4% over the prior year 
total of $136.7 million.  The increase is mainly attributed to the ongoing construction of 
the sbX BRT project, sbX articulated bus procurement, and preliminary engineering and 
design work for the San Bernardino Transit Center. 

OMNITRANS’ Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Percent 
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase Increase 

2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Buildings and improvements $ 45,837,257 45,893,036 (55,779) (0.1) 
Operations equipment 89,513,752 88,840,514 673,238  0.8 
Furniture and office equipment  35,126,701 36,936,878 (1,810,177) (4.9) 
Construction in progress 126,242,147 52,444,563 73,797,584  140.7 
Land 10,731,918 10,731,918 0  0.0 
Accumulated depreciation (100,459,477) (98,143,702) (2,315,775) 2.4 

Total capital assets $ 206,992,298 136,703,207 70,289,091  51.4 

Additional information regarding the Agency’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 in 
the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2013, the Agency had $10.9 million in long-term liabilities compared to $9.4 
million at June 30, 2012.  A significant portion of the Agency’s claims payable is 
anticipated to become payable within one year.  Additional information regarding the 
Agency’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 4 to the Basic Financial Statements. 

OMNITRANS’ Long-Term Liabilities
Percent 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Increase Increase 
$ 2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Claims payable 9,334,915 7,688,128 1,646,787  21.4 
Capital leases 268,169 425,391 (157,222) (37.0) 
Compensated absences 1,279,715 1,303,926 (24,211) (1.9) 

Total long-term liabilities $ 10,882,799 9,417,445 1,465,354  15.6 
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Next Year’s Budget 

Omnitrans prepares an operating and capital budget annually that is approved by the 
Board of Directors prior to the beginning of its fiscal year.  The operating budget for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 will increase proportionately due to the launch of the 
sbX BRT service.  The challenge is containing cost, and providing safe, dependable, 
and quality public transit service at current levels.  Fiscal year 2014 will be the fifth 
consecutive fiscal year that Omnitrans’ operating budget has remained at the existing 
level. 

The capital budget consists of a multi-year program that includes the San Bernardino 
Transit Center, fixed route and access service vehicle replacement.  Funding for these 
major projects have been identified, approved by the Board of Directors, and committed 
to those projects. 

Contacting the Agency’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, stakeholders, and creditors 
with an overview of the Agency’s financial operations and condition.  If you have a 
question about this report or need additional information, you may contact the Agency’s 
Finance Director at 1700 W. 5th Street, San Bernardino, California 92411-2401.
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2013 2012
ASSETS:

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and investments (Note 2) 18,413,935$       27,671,139$     
Receivables:

Accounts, net of allowances 100,338 166,142            
Interest 7,259 18,085              
Intergovernmental 27,264,468 10,545,846       

Inventory 1,593,461 1,549,750         
Prepaid items 303,414 253,519            
Derivative Instrument - natural gas futures (Note 12) 55,513

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 47,738,388        40,204,481       

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Capital assets, not depreciated (Note 5) 136,974,065 63,176,481       
Capital assets, depreciated, net (Note 5) 70,018,233 73,526,726       
Derivative Instrument - natural gas futures (Note 12) 55,300              

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 206,992,298      136,758,507     
TOTAL ASSETS 254,730,686      176,962,988     

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable 17,591,611 10,544,787       
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,751,176 1,641,537         
Retainage payable 67,275 17,195              
Interest payable 1,498 1,155                
Unearned revenue 2,873,278 4,914,153         
Compensated absences payable - 

current portion (Note 4) 2,460,101          2,507,658         
Capital leases payable - current portion (Note 4) 157,122              164,980            
Claims payable - current portion (Note 4) 3,775,550          3,037,871         

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 28,677,611        22,829,336       

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Compensated absences payable (Note 4) 1,279,715 1,303,926         
Capital leases payable (Note 4) 268,269 425,391            
Claims payable (Note 4) 9,334,915 7,688,128         

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 10,882,899        9,417,445         
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,560,510        32,246,781       

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives (Note 12) 55,513 55,300              

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 55,513                55,300              

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets (Note 11) 206,566,907      136,112,836     
Unrestricted (Note 11) 8,547,756          8,548,071         

TOTAL NET POSITION 215,114,663$     144,660,907     
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2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES:

Passenger fares 14,317,987$ 14,536,931$
Advertising revenue 481,994 805,904
Other transportation revenue 39,819 39,819

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 14,839,800 15,382,654

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits 38,719,591 39,751,359
Purchased transportation services 9,084,344 8,882,227
General and administrative 9,341,532 7,779,983
Materials and supplies 8,905,445 8,876,733
Capital purchases 787,439 345,063
Professional and technical services 2,400,460 2,147,300
Advertising and printing 884,837 916,224
Depreciation 16,678,098 17,070,294
Miscellaneous 415,430 507,243

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 87,217,176 86,276,426

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) (72,377,376) (70,893,772)

NONOPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES):
Federal and local operating grants 54,087,458 47,875,811
Interest income 24,915 52,727
Interest expense (8,349)                  (3,980)
Pass-through to other agencies (Note 10) (2,254,293) (620,108)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (80,713)                (271,438)
CNG fuel credit 1,477,256
Other nonoperating revenues 13,304                 24,951

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 53,259,578 47,057,963

INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (19,117,798) (23,835,809)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Capital assistance 89,571,554 34,412,696

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 70,453,756 10,576,887

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 144,660,907 134,084,020

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 215,114,663$ 144,660,907$

73



OMNITRANS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2013 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2012) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

15 

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers 12,864,729$         15,889,414$        
Nonoperating miscellaneous receipts (payments) 1,490,560            24,951                 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (24,785,556)         (22,204,847)         
Cash payments to employees for services (36,297,254)         (39,617,638)         

Net cash used for operating activities (46,727,521)         (45,908,120)         

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal, state, and local operating grants 54,087,458          50,807,315          
Pass-through payments to other agencies (2,254,293)           (620,108)              

Net cash provided by non-capital
 financing activities 51,833,165          50,187,207          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (87,078,535)         (33,911,700)         
Principal paid on capital leases (164,980)              (176,306)              
Interest paid on capital leases (8,006)                   (4,482)                  
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                            1,486                   
Capital grants received 72,852,932          34,803,242          

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related 
 financing activities (14,398,589)         712,240               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 58,250,000          46,785,300          
Purchase of investments (45,235,741)         (55,509,632)         
Interest received 35,741                  54,333                 

Net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities 13,050,000          (8,669,999)           

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,757,055            (3,678,672)           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,977,550            9,656,222            

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 9,734,605$           5,977,550$          

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
AMOUNTS REPORTED ON STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:

Reported on statement of net position:
Cash and investments 18,413,935$         27,671,139$        

Less investments not meeting the definition of cash and
  cash equivalents (8,679,330)           (21,693,589)         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 9,734,605$           5,977,550$          
(Continued)
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2013 2012

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) (72,377,376)$        (70,893,772)$       
Adjustments to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 16,678,098          17,070,294          
Nonoperating miscellaneous income 1,490,560            24,951                 
Realized gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 80,713                  (271,438)              
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 65,804                  501,693               
(Increase) decrease in inventory (43,711)                82,988                 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items (49,895)                (49,995)                
(Increase) decrease in other assets 269,616               
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 7,046,824            5,953,155            
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits 109,639               68,446                 
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (2,040,875)           6,888                   
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable (71,768)                65,287                 
Increase (decrease) in claims payable 2,384,466            1,263,767            

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES (46,727,521)$        (45,908,120)         

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
New borrowings under capital lease -$                       652,369$             
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Business

Omnitrans was organized on March 8, 1976, by a joint powers agreement between the County of San Bernardino, 
California and the following cities:  Chino; Colton; Fontana; Loma Linda; Montclair; Ontario; Redlands; Rialto; 
San Bernardino; and Upland under Section 6506 of the California Government Code for the purpose of providing 
transit services under a single agency.  The following cities were added thereafter:  Rancho Cucamonga and 
Grand Terrace in 1979; Highland in 1988; Yucaipa in 1990; and Chino Hills in 1992. 

Omnitrans provides a variety of transit services to the public of San Bernardino County.  These services include 
bus operations, purchased transportation services with independent contractors and demand response 
transportation services.  Omnitrans also functions as a “pass-through” administrative agency for various federal, 
state and local grants.  

Basis of Accounting

Omnitrans is accounted for as an enterprise fund (proprietary fund type).  Proprietary fund financial statements 
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 

Classification of Revenues and Expenses

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an 
enterprise fund’s principal operations.  The principal operating revenues of Omnitrans consist of bus transit 
services.  Non-operating revenues consist of federal, state and local operating grants, and investment income.  
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales, administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets. 

Expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating expenses.  Non-operating expenses primarily 
consist of payments to pass-through agencies and interest expense.

Capital contributions consist of grants that are legally restricted for capital expenses by federal, state or local law 
that established those charges. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is Omnitrans' policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present 
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, and have an original maturity date of 
three months or less. 

Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying Statement of Net Position at fair value.  Changes in fair value that 
occur during the fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year.  Investment income 
includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Omnitrans provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for all accounts deemed uncollectible.  As of 
June 30, 2013, all accounts were deemed collectible resulting in an allowance for doubtful accounts of $0. 

Inventories

Inventories consist of Operations vehicles’ parts and fuel in storage held for consumption.  The parts and fuel in 
storage are stated at the lower of cost (average cost method) or market.  The value of parts and fuel held in storage 
as of June 30, 2013 was $1,593,461. 

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available.  Donated assets are 
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.  Omnitrans capitalizes all assets with a historical 
cost of at least $2,000 and a useful life of at least one year.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation of capital assets used by Omnitrans is charged as an expense against its operations.  Depreciation is 
computed utilizing the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Number of
Category Years

Buildings and improvements 5 to 30
Operations equipment 3 to 10
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 20

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure) until then.  Omnitrans does 
not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The 
government has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category.  Omnitrans reports the value of their 
derivative instrument, natural gas futures used for hedging purposes, as an inflow of resources in the period that 
the amounts become available. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Compensated Absences

It is Omnitrans’ policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits up 
to certain limits.  Management, non-exempt, and coach operator employees begin to accrue vested sick leave 
hours after six months of service.  Upon voluntary resignation, retirement or death and after six months of service, 
management and non-exempt employees or their estate are paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 50 
percent of the available sick leave hours not to exceed 1,200 hours (e.g. 50 percent of 1,200 hours would be paid 
at 600 hours).  Represented employees begin to accrue vested sick leave hours after reaching a certain amount of 
service time based upon their respective work classification.  Teamsters accrue sick leave after 1,040 hours of 
actual hours worked and Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU) members are after their first year of continuous full-
time employment, based upon their respective work classification.  Upon voluntary resignation, retirement, or 
death, and after a certain amount of years of service (ATU members after 8 years of service and Teamsters after 
10 years of service), represented employees or their estate are paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 
50 percent of available sick leave hours not to exceed 1,200 hours (e.g. 50 percent of 1,200 hours would be paid at 
600 hours).   

Full-time non-represented employees begin to accrue vacation hours after 6 months of service.  Employee 
vacation credits may be accrued and accumulated up to a maximum of 2 years total accumulated vacation credits.  
Eligible employees with an annual accrual of 3 or more weeks of vacation per year, after taking 80 hours 
vacation, shall be permitted to request 2 weeks pay in lieu of time off.  Represented employees will accrue 
vacation benefits in accordance with the provisions of their respective Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  

Accumulated unpaid vacation and vested sick leave pay is recorded as an expense and a liability at the time the 
benefit is earned.  Total compensated absences payable was $3,739,816 at June 30, 2013. 

Prior Year Data

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements.  This 
information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with Omnitrans’ prior year financial statements, from which this selected financial data was derived. 

Federal, State and Local Grants

Federal, state and local governments have made various grants available to Omnitrans for operating assistance and 
acquisition of capital assets.  Grants for operating assistance, the acquisition of equipment or other capital outlay 
are not formally recognized in the accounts until the grant becomes a valid receivable as a result of Omnitrans 
complying with appropriate grant requirements.  Operating assistance grants are included in non-operating 
revenues in the year in which the grant is applicable and the related expenses are incurred.  Revenues earned 
under capital grants are recorded as capital contributions.   

Pass-Through Activities

Revenues associated with grants, where Omnitrans serves as the administrating agent, are recorded as either non-
operating revenues or capital contributions based on the approved use of the grant.  The related expense is 
recorded as “pass-through to other agencies” in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position as the expenses do not support the operations of Omnitrans nor provide an asset.   
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any 
outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct, or improve those assets. 

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets and liabilities that are not included in the determination of 
net position components listed above. 

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective in this Fiscal Year 

GASB Statement No. 60 - In November of 2010, the GASB issued Statement 60, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Service Concession Agreements.  This Statement provides guidance on reporting and disclosure of 
service concession agreements.  This statement was effective July 1, 2012. 

GASB Statement No. 61 - In November of 2010, the GASB issued Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity 
Omnibus.  This Statement updates existing standards pertaining to financial reporting for which significant issues 
have been identified in practice.  This statement was implemented July 1, 2012. 

GASB Statement No. 62 – In December 2010, GASB issued Statement 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.  This 
statement incorporates FASB and AICPA pronouncements into the GASB’s authoritative literature containing 
certain accounting and financial reporting guidance.  This statement was implemented July 1, 2012.  

Effective in Future Fiscal Years 

GASB Statement No. 67 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement 67, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pension Plans—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25.  This statement establishes accounting and financial 
reporting requirements related to pensions for governments whose employees are provided with pensions through 
pension plans that are covered by the scope of this Statement, as well as for non-employer governments that have 
a legal obligation to contribute to those plans.  This Statement also addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for the activities of pension plans that are administered through trusts. This Statement is effective as of 
July 1, 2013.  Omnitrans has not determined the effect on the financial statements.   
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

GASB Statement No. 68 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  This Statement establishes standards for measuring and 
recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.  
For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project 
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present 
value to periods of employee service.  This Statement is effective as of July 1, 2014.  Omnitrans has not 
determined the effect on the financial statements.

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following: 

Cash on hand 3,700$                
Deposits with financial institutions 9,730,905          
Investments 8,679,330          

18,413,935$       

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code or Omnitrans’ Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the California Government Code (or 
Omnitrans’ investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or Omnitrans’ investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.   

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
Federal Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 20% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days None None
Medium - Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None None
State Pools (other investment pools) N/A None None
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair market value 
to changes in market interest rates.  The investment policy of Omnitrans provides safety and liquidity guidelines 
for managing interest rate risk.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of Omnitrans’ investments to market interest rate fluctuations 
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of Omnitrans’ investments by maturity: 

12 Months
Investment Type or Less
Local Agency Investment Fund 8,679,330$      

Remaining 
Maturing (in 

Months)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  The 
table below represents the minimum rating required by the California Government Code (where applicable), or 
Omnitrans’ investment policy, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. 

Minimum
Legal

Investment Type Amount Rating Not Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund 8,679,330$ N/A 8,679,330$

Rating as of 
Year End

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of Omnitrans’ investment in a single 
issue.  The investment policy of Omnitrans contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  As of June 30, 2013, Omnitrans did not have 
any investments in any one issuer (other than external investment pools) that represented 5% or more of its total 
investment portfolio. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, 
Omnitrans will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code 
and Omnitrans’ investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to 
custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits.  The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 
waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at 
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions 
to secure Omnitrans’ deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits.  As of June 30, 2013, Omnitrans had deposits of $9,710,979 held in excess of federal depository 
insurance corporation (FDIC) limits. 

Investment in LAIF

Omnitrans is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is regulated by 
California Government Code Section 16429.1 through 16429.4 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California.  LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer and 
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  An oversight committee comprised of California 
State officials and various participants provide oversight to the management of the fund.  The daily operations and 
responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer's office.  The fair value of Omnitrans’ 
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon Omnitrans’ 
pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of 
that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, 
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.   

NOTE 3 – FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS 

Omnitrans receives operating and capital assistance from various federal, state and local sources. 

Federal Assistance

Under the provision of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), funds are available to Omnitrans for preventive 
maintenance, security, and various capital costs.   

Transportation Development Act Assistance

Pursuant to provisions of the 1971 Transportation Development Act (TDA), as amended, the California State 
Legislature enacted the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) and the State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) to 
provide operating and capital assistance for public transportation.  These funds are received from the County of 
San Bernardino based on annual claims filed by Omnitrans and approved by the San Bernardino Associated 
Governments (SANBAG), the regional transportation planning entity.  
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NOTE 3 – FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS (CONTINUED) 

To be eligible for TDA funds, Omnitrans must maintain a ratio of passenger fares to operating costs of not less 
than 20.00% for general public transit service and 10.00% for specialized service for the elderly and handicapped.  
After considering certain cost exemption provisions of the TDA, Omnitrans’ ratios for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2013 were 23.81% for general public transit service, and 12.57% for specialized service for the elderly 
and handicapped.   

Measure I

Omnitrans receives Measure I funds for paratransit operating costs.  Measure I funds are derived from a locally 
imposed 0.5% retail sales and use tax on all taxable sales within the County of San Bernardino.  The allocation 
and administration of Measure I is performed by SANBAG.  

Proposition 1B

The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) Fund is 
a part of the State of California’s Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 
2006 (Bond Act), approved by California voters as Proposition 1B on November 7, 2006.  A total of $19.9 billion 
was deposited into the PTMISEA fund, $3.6 billion of which was made available to project sponsors in California 
for allocation to eligible public transportation projects over a 10-year period.  Proposition 1B funds can be used 
for rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, new capital 
projects, bus rapid transit improvements, or for rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or replacement.  During 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, Proposition 1B cash receipts and cash disbursements were as follows:   

Unspent Proposition 1B funds as of June 30, 2012 4,836,504$          
Proposition 1B expenses incurred during the fiscal year
   ended June 30, 2013 (2,365,205)           
Interest revenue earned on unspent Proposition 1B
   funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 2,627                   

2,473,926$          

Operating assistance is summarized as follows for the year ended June 30: 

Federal Assistance 12,209,078$        
LTF 34,029,832         
STAF 2,998,548           
Measure I 4,850,000           

54,087,458$        
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NOTE 3 – FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL GRANTS (CONTINUED) 

Capital contributions for the year ended June 30 were as follows: 

Federal Assistance 80,044,254$
LTF 3,335,961
STAF 2,611,457
Measure I 948,538
Prop 1B 2,589,027
Other 42,317

89,571,554$

NOTE 4 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Balance at Balance at Due Within Amount Due
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013 One Year Beyond One Year

Compensated absences 3,811,584$    2,136,469$    (2,208,237)$   3,739,816$    2,460,101$    1,279,715$
Capital leases 590,371         -                     (164,980)        425,391         157,122         268,269
Claims payable 10,725,999    5,628,983      (3,244,517)     13,110,465    3,775,550      9,334,915

Total Long-Term Liabilities 15,127,954$  7,765,452$   (5,617,734)$  17,275,672$ 6,392,773$    10,882,899$

Capital Lease Obligations

In December 2011 Omnitrans entered into a lease financing arrangement for 29 vehicles with Enterprise Fleet 
Services.  The minimum lease payments required during the current five-year term of these agreements are 
$665,411.  The lease payments have a present value of $652,369, which approximates the value of the assets, and 
is the amount capitalized in Omnitrans’ capital assets.  The outstanding principal balance was $425,391 as of 
June 30, 2013. 

The future minimum lease obligations as of June 30, 2013 were as follows: 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 157,122$      5,444$          162,566$
2015 139,166       2,757           141,923
2016 129,103       1,392           130,495
Total 425,391$      9,593$          434,984$
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT DEPRECIATED:
Land 10,731,918$    -$                  -$                    10,731,918$
Construction in progress 52,444,563     86,933,629  (13,136,045)    126,242,147

Total assets, not depreciated 63,176,481     86,933,629  (13,136,045)    136,974,065

CAPITAL ASSETS, DEPRECIATED:
Buildings and improvements 45,893,036     162,322       (218,101)         45,837,257
Operations equipment 88,840,514     12,106,346 (11,433,108)    89,513,752
Furniture and office equipment 36,936,878     1,336,245    (3,146,422)      35,126,701

Total capital assets, depreciated 171,670,428 13,604,913 (14,797,631)    170,477,710

LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATED FOR:
Buildings and improvements (22,866,292) (1,848,644)   218,101          (24,496,835)
Operations equipment (53,273,862) (6,956,411)   10,997,893     (49,232,380)
Furniture and office equipment (22,003,548) (7,873,043)   3,146,329       (26,730,262)

Total accumulated depreciation (98,143,702) (16,678,098) 14,362,323     (100,459,477)
Total capital assets, depreciation, net 73,526,726     (3,073,185)   (435,308)         70,018,233
Capital assets, net 136,703,207$  83,860,444$ (13,571,353)$ 206,992,298$

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $16,678,098

NOTE 6 – OPERATING LEASES 

Omnitrans leases facilities and tires under noncancelable operating leases.  Total costs for such leases were 
$802,841 during the year ended June 30, 2013.  The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as 
follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Total

2014 219,549$
2015 176,183
Total 395,732$

NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

Omnitrans is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors 
or omissions; and natural disasters for which they carry commercial insurance.  Liabilities are reported when it is 
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR).  Claim liabilities are calculated considering 
the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of payouts and other 
economic and social factors.  The outstanding claims at June 30, 2013 were estimated to be $13,110,465 and were 
based on an IBNR study performed in fiscal year 2012-2013.  Changes in the fund claims liability amount for the 
last two fiscal years are as follows: 

Year Ending Beginning of Provisions of Claim End of Year
June 30, Year Liability Claims Payments Liability

2012 9,462,232$ 2,859,989$         (1,596,222)$        10,725,999$
2013 10,725,999 5,628,983          (3,244,517)         13,110,465
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NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Omnitrans is a member of the Association of California Public Transit Operators Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority (Authority).  The Authority is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of 
California law in 1987.  The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the 
pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage. 

At June 30, 2013, Omnitrans’ participation in the self-insurance programs of the Authority is as follows: 

General Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and has purchased re-
insurance and excess insurance coverage. 

Automobile Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and has purchased re-
insurance and excess insurance coverage. 

Public Officials Errors and Omissions: Omnitrans is self-insured up to $1,000,000 per occurrence and has 
purchased re-insurance and excess insurance coverage. 

Vehicle Collision and Comprehensive Liability:  Insured up to actual cash value of covered vehicles up to 
$10,000,000 per occurrence subject to per vehicle deductibles.  The Authority has purchased excess 
insurance coverage. 

Separate financial statements of the Authority can be obtained at 1415 L Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 
95814. 

Omnitrans has also purchased additional insurance coverage outlined below: 

Workers Compensation Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for workers’ compensations claims up to 
$1,000,000 with a limit of liability of $5,000,000 and excess coverage up to $95,000,000.

Property Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for property damage up to $25,000 for Electronic Data 
Processing Equipment and $10,000 for all other losses per occurrence, with limit of liability up to 
$32,522,360.  Omnitrans has also purchased earthquake and flood coverage for damage, for which it is 
self-insured up to $25,000 for an earthquake and $50,000 for a flood per occurrence, with a limit of 
liability of $10,000,000 and excess coverage of $10,000,000. 

Crime Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for employee dishonesty and theft up to $1,000 per occurrence, 
with a limit of liability up to $50,000. 

Pollution Remediation Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for pollution remediation claims up to $50,000 
per occurrence and $150,000 in aggregate, with a limit of liability of $5,000,000 per occurrence and 
$10,000,000 in aggregate. 

Employment Related Practices Liability: Omnitrans is self-insured for employment related practices 
liability claims up to $50,000 with a limit of liability of $1,000,000 

For the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protections has had settlements or judgments that 
exceeded pooled or insured coverage.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description

Omnitrans contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.  PERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
participating public entities within the State of California.  Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be 
obtained from their executive office: 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95811. 

Funding Policy

Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary.  Omnitrans makes the contributions 
required of Omnitrans’ employees on their behalf and for their account.  The contribution requirements of the plan 
members and Omnitrans are established and may be amended by PERS. 

Annual Pension Cost

Under GASB Statement No. 27 as amended by GASB Statement No. 50, an employer reports an Annual Pension 
Cost (APC) equal to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC).  The ARC for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 
2013 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2010.  The contribution rate 
indicated for the period is 10.618% of payroll.  In order to calculate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in 
financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2013, this contribution rate, as modified by any amendments for the 
year, is multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that were actually paid during the period from July 1, 
2012 to June 30, 2013. 

Annual Pension Percentage of
Fiscal Year Cost (APC) APC Contribution
6/30/2011 2,851,883$         100%
6/30/2012 3,050,337          100%
6/30/2013 2,919,958          100%

Three Year Trend Information

A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown below. 

Valuation Date June 30, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Average Remaining Period 18 Years as of the Valuation Date
Asset Valuation Method 15 Year Smoothed Market
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 7.75% (net of administrative expenses)
Projected Salary Increases 3.55% to 14.45% depending on age, service, and type of employment
Inflation 3.00%
Payroll Growth 3.25%
Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 

assumed annual inflation component of 3.00% and an annual
production growth of 0.25%.
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NOTE 8 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s date of entry into 
CalPERS.  Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period.  
Gains and losses that occur in the operation of the plan are amortized over a rolling period, which results in an 
amortization of 6% of unamortized gains and losses each year.  If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the actuarial 
value of plan assets, then the amortization payment on the total unfunded liability may not be lower than the 
payment calculated over a 30 year amortization period. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 96.9% percent funded.  The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $109,878,995, and the actuarial value of assets was $106,437,254, resulting in 
an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,441,741.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $28,202,757, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 12.2%.  

The Schedule of Funding Progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the 
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation

Omnitrans is subject to lawsuits and claims which arise out of the normal course of business.  In the opinion of 
management, based upon the opinion of legal counsel, the disposition of such actions of which it is aware will not 
have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of Omnitrans. 

Contingencies

Omnitrans has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 
grantor agencies.  Although, such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants, 
in the opinion of management, any additional required reimbursement will not have a material effect on the 
financial position, results of operations or liquidity of Omnitrans. 

Commitments

Commitments consist primarily of additions to operations equipment and building improvements.  Significant 
commitments are as follows: 

Cumulative
Amount Expenses Unexpended

Project Authorized June 30, 2013 Commitments
Facilities Future Expansion and Remodel 3,886,089$         2,748,685$         1,137,404$         
Computer Software and Hardware 2,764,084          2,674,817          89,267                
E Street Bus Rapid Transit 153,024,343      85,184,198        67,840,145         
E Street Bus Rapid Transit - Right of Way 11,095,785        10,904,470        191,315              
E Street Bus Rapid Transit - 60' Articulated Buses 15,410,407        15,331,726        78,681                
E Street Bus Rapid Transit - Vehicle Maintenance Facility 12,175,466        3,160,298          9,015,168           
San Bernardino Transit Center 9,240,328          4,149,060          5,091,268           
Vehicle  & Shop Equipment 2,210,403          2,088,893          121,510              

Total major components of construction in progress 209,806,905$     126,242,147$ 83,564,758$       
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NOTE 10 – PASS-THROUGH GRANTS 

Pass-through activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is summarized as follows: 

City of Needles 1,156,431$          
SANBAG 2,138                  
Inland Valley Recovery Services 10,905                
City of Chino 910                     
City of Ontario 471,555              
City of Rialto 31,935                
City of Yucaipa 80,690                
LLUMC Adult Day Health Services 39,350                
Inland Empire United Way 44,346                
Central City Lutheran 32,060                
Pomona Valley 188,469              
Valley Transportation Services 195,504              

2,254,293$          

NOTE 11 – NET POSITION 

The following is a detailed breakdown of net position.   

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 206,992,298$     
Less:  Debt offsetting capital assets (425,391)             
Net investment in capital assets 206,566,907      
Unrestricted net position 8,547,756           

Total net position 215,114,663$     

As of June 30, 2013, management has set aside reserves in the amount of $8,547,756, included within unrestricted 
net position, for the following:  

Bus transit operations, workers
  compensation and general liability contingencies 8,547,756$          

Total unrestricted net position 8,547,756$          
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NOTE 12 – DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

Omnitrans holds a basket of natural gas futures contracts with a contract price of $3.349 / MMBtu and a notional 
amount of $12,500 MMBtus / month that settle on a monthly basis.  As of June 30, 2013 there were 11 remaining 
monthly settlements as the last maturity date is May 29, 2014.  These futures contracts are classified as cash flow 
hedges of forecasted purchases ($12,500 MMBtus per month) of clean energy natural gas through May 2014.   

The fair values, classification and notional amounts for the natural gas hedge derivatives accounted for as 
derivative financial instruments as June 30, 2013 are summarized as follows:    

Changes in
Fair Value as of Fair Value for

Cash Flow Hedges Classifications Notional June 30, 2013 Fiscal Year
Henry Hub Natural Gas Deferred 12,500$          55,513$            213$
 Futures (effective hedge) Inflow MMBtu/Month

The accounting standards, namely GASB Statement No. 53, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 
Instruments” (“GASB 53’), require governments to record derivative instruments on the Statement of Net 
Position as either assets or liabilities depending on the fair value of the derivative.  Omnitrans gas hedging 
contracts are an effective hedge, thus gains and losses are deferred on the Statement of Net Position as either 
current credits or charges for contracts with under 12 months remaining until expiration.  A deferred inflow of 
resources has also been recorded on the Statement of Net Position reflecting the deferred inflow associated with 
the derivative financial instrument.

In January 2012, Omnitrans entered into an agreement with Morgan Stanley Smith Barney for brokerage services 
for transactions to be executed in Omnitrans’ name on the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX).  The 
objective of the brokerage agreement is to achieve cost certainty for deliveries of Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) 
based on hedging activity of LNG futures contracts traded openly on the NYMEX.  

The name of the derivative traded openly on the NYMEX is the Henry Hub Natural Gas Futures Basket (Futures
Basket) and it has an effective date of January 17, 2012 and a maturity date of May 29, 2014.  As required by the 
brokerage agreement with Morgan Stanley Smith Barney, Omnitrans deposited $175,000 into a margin account to 
initiate the derivative.   
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

The following schedule summarizes Omnitrans’ funding progress for the PERS plan: 

Entry Age Unfunded/
Normal Actuarial Actuarial Annual UAAL

Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered as a %
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Status Payroll of Payroll

6/30/2009 95,214,597$ 89,108,941$ 6,105,656$ 93.6% 30,956,875$ 19.7%
6/30/2010 102,163,260 97,503,157 4,633,103 95.5% 30,956,894  15.0%
6/30/2011 109,878,995 106,437,254 3,441,741 96.9% 28,202,757  12.2%
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This section of Omnitrans’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information say about 
Omnitrans’ overall financial health.  This information has not been audited by the 
independent auditors. 

            Page

Financial Trends          34
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the Omnitrans financial performance and well-being 
has changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity          36
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
Omnitrans’ most significant local revenue source, passenger fares. 

The Economy and Economic Outlook       42
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicator to help 
the reader understand the environment within Omnitrans’ financial 
activities take place. 

Operating Information         43
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how the information in Omnitrans’ financial report 
relates to the services Omnitrans provides and the activities it 
performs.
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THE ECONOMY AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

San Bernardino County is the largest county in the nation in terms of total land area. San 
Bernardino County and Riverside County comprise the Inland Empire, one of the fastest 
growing metro areas in the nation from 1997 to 2006. The recession has had an outsized impact 
on the region, but general economic improvements have been observed over the last two years. 

The San Bernardino County economy will continue to expand in 2013. Over the longer-term 
forecast, the Inland Empire will experience greater growth than the coastal counties, due largely 
to the availability of land at lower costs. 

Economic Highlights 

2018, the annual growth rate is expected to average 1.9 percent. 

Manufacturing, transportation, wholesale trade, professional services, health and education, 

significantly faster than the 0.6 percent that occurred over the previous five years. 

the forecast. Between 2013 and 2018, an average of 10,100 net migrants will enter the 
county each year. 

The worst days of record setting numbers of foreclosures, plummeting home values and soaring 

these industries will ultimately determine the strength of the region’s economy over the short 
term and more importantly, the long term. In the coming years, the key advantages for the 
Inland Empire will once again be the affordability of housing, population growth and available 
low-cost land for additional warehouse construction. 

Source:  CA Department of Transportation; LAEDC Kyser Center for Economic Research 
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Routes and schedules are subject to change without notice.

Route Listing
Route Route Name
  ARMC – San Bernardino Del Rosa
  Cal St – E St – Loma Linda
  Baseline – Highland – San Bdno
  San Bernardino – Del Rosa – Cal State
  N San Bdno – Sierra Way – San Bdno 
  San Bdno – Mentone – Yucaipa
  San Bernardino – Redlands – Yucaipa
  Fontana – Baseline – San Bernardino
  San Bernardino – Muscoy – Cal State
  Fontana – Foothill – San Bernardino
  Fontana – San Bernardino/Highland – Redlands
  Fontana – Colton – Redlands
  Fontana – Metrolink – Via Hemlock – Kaiser
  North Rialto – Riverside Ave – ARMC
  Bloomington – Valley Blvd – Kaiser
  Fontana – Ontario Mills – Pomona
  Chino – Ontario – Upland
  Montclair – Chino Hills
  Fontana – Foothill Blvd – Montclair
  Montclair – Baseline – Fontana
  Chino – Montclair – Chaffey College
  Montclair – Ont Conv Cntr – Chaffey College
  Ontario – Ontario Mills – Chaffey College
  Rancho Cucamonga – Fontana – Sierra Lakes
  Upland – Euclid – Chino
  San Bernardino – Riverside
  OmniGo Yucaipa
  OmniGo Yucaipa
  OmniGo Grand Terrace
  OmniGo Chino/Chino Hills

1
2
3/4
5
7
8
9
10
11
14
15
19
20
22
29
61
63
65
66
67
68
80
81
82
83
215

Bus Route

Tripper Service

Long-term Detour

Metrolink

Metrolink Station OmniLink Service Area
(Demand Reponse Service) 
For more information, call
Chino Hills: 1-800-330-6424
or Yucaipa: 1-800-990-2406
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(Timed Transfers)
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Boarding the bus
• Please get to the bus stop a few 

minutes before the bus is 
scheduled to arrive, and wait 
next to the Omnitrans bus stop 
sign. The bus will pull over at 
the closest safe place to stop, 
and then you can board the bus.

• Please have exact change for 
your bus fare ready. Omnitrans 
drivers do not carry change.

• Please do not smoke, drink or 
eat on the bus.

Getting o� the bus
• Let your driver know that you'd 

like to exit the bus at the next 
stop by pressing the rubber strip 
near the bus windows.

• Please exit the bus through the 
rear doors. For your safety, 
please don't step into the rear 
stairwell until the bus has 
stopped.

For complete route 
and schedule 

information call:
1-800-9-OMNIBUS
(1-800-966-6428)

www.omnitrans.org

Effective Date: May 6, 2013

Route Listing
Route Route Name
  Fontana – Ontario Mills – Pomona
  Chino – Ontario – Upland
  Montclair – Chino Hills
  Fontana – Foothill Blvd – Montclair
  Montclair – Baseline – Fontana
  Chino – Montclair – Chaffey College
  Montclair – Ont Conv Cntr – Chaffey College
  Ontario – Ontario Mills – Chaffey College
  Rancho Cucamonga – Fontana – Sierra Lakes
  Upland – Euclid – Chino
  OmniGo Chino/Chino Hills

61
63
65
66
67
68
80
81
82
83

365

Demand Response Service
What Is It?
A curb-to-curb transportation service 
provided by Omnitrans.

OmniLink connects you to the outlying 
communities of Yucaipa and Chino Hills.

How To Schedule Your Ride
You can request a ride and decide the time 
and place within our service hours and area 
(see maps on this page) in advance. 
Reservations are required for OmniLink 
service, and you can make reservations by 
calling one of the following phone numbers, 
7:00 AM - 6:00 PM, Monday - Friday:

Chino Hills   1-800-330-6424
Yucaipa        1-800-990-2406

Please note:  Telephone reservations begin 
30 minutes before service begins and ends 30 
minutes before service ends.  If you cannot 
make your trip, please call to cancel at least 
two hours before the scheduled pickup time. 

Fares
Full Fare    $3.00
Seniors/Persons with Disabilities $1.50
Students    $2.00
Children, limit 2 (UP TO 46”)    FREE
Transfers to Omnitrans buses  FREE

OmniLink tickets can also be purchased 
online at www.omnitrans.org.

Free Transfers
You can transfer FREE to Omnitrans Route 65 
and 365 within Chino Hills and Routes 8, 9, 308 
and 309 within Yucaipa.  Just ask your driver to 
issue you a transfer.  Your transfer will be good 
for two hours to exchange for an Omnitrans Day 
Pass.  A Day Pass allows unlimited travel 
throughout  the Omnitrans system.  Your transfer 
will not be good for another trip on OmniLink.

For more information about OmniLink service, 
please call 1-800-9-OMNIBUS (1-800-966-7628).

For Persons With Disabilities
Access is a public, pre-scheduled service that provides curb-to-curb service 
upon request to people are who unable to use Omnitrans fixed route bus 
service due to a physical or cognitive disability.  The Access service area is 
defined as up to 3/4 mile on either side of an existing bus route. 
To qualify for Access service, you must meet one of the conditions established 
by the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) and have an ADA certification card.  
Eligibility for the ADA card is determined through an application process.  For 
more information, visit omnitrans.org or call (909)379-7284.

ROUTE 308 ROUTE 309
Note:

The Route 308 loop travels counter-clockwise;
the Route 309 and 310 loop travels clockwise.

OmniLink 
Service Area
Omnitrans 
Routes 8 & 9
OmniGo
Route 308/309

ROUTE 308 ROUTE 309
Note:

The Route 308 loop travels counter-clockwise;
the Route 309 and 310 loop travels clockwise.
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Routes and schedules are subject to change without notice.

Route Listing
Route Route Name
  ARMC – San Bernardino Del Rosa
  Cal St – E St – Loma Linda
  Baseline – Highland – San Bdno
  San Bernardino – Del Rosa – Cal State
  N San Bdno – Sierra Way – San Bdno 
  San Bdno – Mentone – Yucaipa
  San Bernardino – Redlands – Yucaipa
  Fontana – Baseline – San Bernardino
  San Bernardino – Muscoy – Cal State
  Fontana – Foothill – San Bernardino
  Fontana – San Bernardino/Highland – Redlands
  Fontana – Colton – Redlands
  Fontana – Metrolink – Via Hemlock – Kaiser
  North Rialto – Riverside Ave – ARMC
  Bloomington – Valley Blvd – Kaiser
  Fontana – Ontario Mills – Pomona
  Chino – Ontario – Upland
  Montclair – Chino Hills
  Fontana – Foothill Blvd – Montclair
  Montclair – Baseline – Fontana
  Chino – Montclair – Chaffey College
  Montclair – Ont Conv Cntr – Chaffey College
  Ontario – Ontario Mills – Chaffey College
  Rancho Cucamonga – Fontana – Sierra Lakes
  Upland – Euclid – Chino
  San Bernardino – Riverside
  OmniGo Yucaipa
  OmniGo Yucaipa
  OmniGo Grand Terrace
  OmniGo Chino/Chino Hills
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3/4
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Bus Route
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(Demand Reponse Service) 
For more information, call
Chino Hills: 1-800-330-6424
or Yucaipa: 1-800-990-2406
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1-800-9-OMNIBUS  •  (1-800-966-6428)  •  www.omnitrans.org

Boarding the bus
• Please get to the bus stop a few 

minutes before the bus is 
scheduled to arrive, and wait 
next to the Omnitrans bus stop 
sign. The bus will pull over at 
the closest safe place to stop, 
and then you can board the bus.

• Please have exact change for 
your bus fare ready. Omnitrans 
drivers do not carry change.

• Please do not smoke, drink or 
eat on the bus.

Getting o� the bus
• Let your driver know that you'd 

like to exit the bus at the next 
stop by pressing the rubber strip 
near the bus windows.

• Please exit the bus through the 
rear doors. For your safety, 
please don't step into the rear 
stairwell until the bus has 
stopped.

For complete route 
and schedule 

information call:
1-800-9-OMNIBUS
(1-800-966-6428)

www.omnitrans.org

Effective Date: May 6, 2013

Route Listing
Route Route Name
  Fontana – Ontario Mills – Pomona
  Chino – Ontario – Upland
  Montclair – Chino Hills
  Fontana – Foothill Blvd – Montclair
  Montclair – Baseline – Fontana
  Chino – Montclair – Chaffey College
  Montclair – Ont Conv Cntr – Chaffey College
  Ontario – Ontario Mills – Chaffey College
  Rancho Cucamonga – Fontana – Sierra Lakes
  Upland – Euclid – Chino
  OmniGo Chino/Chino Hills

61
63
65
66
67
68
80
81
82
83

365

Demand Response Service
What Is It?
A curb-to-curb transportation service 
provided by Omnitrans.

OmniLink connects you to the outlying 
communities of Yucaipa and Chino Hills.

How To Schedule Your Ride
You can request a ride and decide the time 
and place within our service hours and area 
(see maps on this page) in advance. 
Reservations are required for OmniLink 
service, and you can make reservations by 
calling one of the following phone numbers, 
7:00 AM - 6:00 PM, Monday - Friday:

Chino Hills   1-800-330-6424
Yucaipa        1-800-990-2406

Please note:  Telephone reservations begin 
30 minutes before service begins and ends 30 
minutes before service ends.  If you cannot 
make your trip, please call to cancel at least 
two hours before the scheduled pickup time. 

Fares
Full Fare    $3.00
Seniors/Persons with Disabilities $1.50
Students    $2.00
Children, limit 2 (UP TO 46”)    FREE
Transfers to Omnitrans buses  FREE

OmniLink tickets can also be purchased 
online at www.omnitrans.org.

Free Transfers
You can transfer FREE to Omnitrans Route 65 
and 365 within Chino Hills and Routes 8, 9, 308 
and 309 within Yucaipa.  Just ask your driver to 
issue you a transfer.  Your transfer will be good 
for two hours to exchange for an Omnitrans Day 
Pass.  A Day Pass allows unlimited travel 
throughout  the Omnitrans system.  Your transfer 
will not be good for another trip on OmniLink.

For more information about OmniLink service, 
please call 1-800-9-OMNIBUS (1-800-966-7628).

For Persons With Disabilities
Access is a public, pre-scheduled service that provides curb-to-curb service 
upon request to people are who unable to use Omnitrans fixed route bus 
service due to a physical or cognitive disability.  The Access service area is 
defined as up to 3/4 mile on either side of an existing bus route. 
To qualify for Access service, you must meet one of the conditions established 
by the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) and have an ADA certification card.  
Eligibility for the ADA card is determined through an application process.  For 
more information, visit omnitrans.org or call (909)379-7284.

ROUTE 308 ROUTE 309
Note:

The Route 308 loop travels counter-clockwise;
the Route 309 and 310 loop travels clockwise.

OmniLink 
Service Area
Omnitrans 
Routes 8 & 9
OmniGo
Route 308/309

ROUTE 308 ROUTE 309
Note:

The Route 308 loop travels counter-clockwise;
the Route 309 and 310 loop travels clockwise.
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